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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong Kong
Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements”
page of the GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for a
minimum period of seven days from the date of its publication
and on the Company's website at http.//www.hklifesciences.com.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

X R R e K )

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group is principally
engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses; (ii)
trading business; (iii) money lending business; (iv) securities
investment; and (v) hotel operations.

BUSINESS REVIEW

ANTI-AGING AND STEM CELL TECHNOLOGY
BUSINESSES

During the year, the Group recorded a turnover from the anti-
aging and stem cell technology businesses in the amount of
approximately HK$16,245,000 (2014: HK$12,343,000) representing
an increase of 32% as compared to the last year. The segmental
loss was approximately HK$21,669,000, as compared to the
segmental loss in the amount of approximately HK$29,883,000 in
2014. The loss was incurred mainly from the administrative and
other operating expenses.

159 Anti-Aging Center

In 2012, the Group has successfully completed the acquisition of
51% of equity interests of 159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.)
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “159 Group”). 159 Group
was granted a licence for the user right of stem cell technology.
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, HK$74,800,000 of
the Consideration by means of 249,333,333 Consideration Shares
will be allotted and issued to the vendor at the issue price of
HK$0.3 per Consideration Share subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 April 2015, the Company received
confirmations from the vendor and the guarantor, and they have
irrevocably and unconditionally confirmed to the Company that (i)
based on the management accounts of 159 Group, 159 Group
recorded losses for Guarantee Period A and Guarantee Period B
and the conditions of target earnings before interests, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (the “Target EBITDA") were not
fulfilled; (i) the Patent has not been approved or the accumulative
Target EBITDA was not fulfilled; and (iii) the obligation of the
Company under the agreement to allot and issue 249,333,333
Consideration Shares has ceased and determined, and the
Company is discharged from the remaining payment obligations
under the agreement. During the year, the Company recognized a
gain on derecognition of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$31,167,000.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group had carried on the annual impairment assessment on
the carrying amount of goodwill in relation to the acquisition of
159 Group and recognized an impairment loss of HK$42,000,000
representing the carrying amount of the goodwill excess its
recoverable amount. It was mainly due to the number of
customers and turnover during the reporting years did not reach
the expected target projection.

During the year under review, 159 Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$13,648,000 (2014: HK$10,255,000) and loss of
approximately HK$15,159,000 (2014: HK$18,814,000). The loss
attributable to the Group for the year was approximately
HK$7,731,000 (2014: HK$9,595,000). The management has
imposed tight control over the operating cost of 159 Group, the
loss was incurred mainly from the staff costs and rental expenses.

The anti-aging application with the stem cell technology is a fairly
new service, the future of this business will depend on the
success in achieving the market acceptance and customers’
confidence for our products and services. The Group has entered
into certain agency agreements with agents, pursuant to which
the agents will promote and sell the Group's products and service
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Board
anticipates it will make help to explore prospective customers in
the PRC. The Group will continue to explore various approaches
to promote and publicize the anti-aging application and related
service to encourage customers to use our products and services.

Other Anti-Aging and Stem Cell Technology Businesses
The Group entered into certain distribution agreements to acquire
the right to import, market, distribute and sell the life sciences
and biomedical products in Hong Kong. During the year, the
turnover from the distribution of life sciences and biomedical
products amounted to HK$181,000 (2014: HK$1,898,000). In 2013,
the Group had acquired the entire interests of Shenzhen Sheng Li
Hui Biotechnology Company Limited* and setting up certain PRC
subsidiaries, which are principally engaged in the provision of
health check and beauty service. During the year under review,
the Group recorded a turnover from the provision of health check
and beauty service of approximately HK$2,416,000 (2014
HK$550,000). The Group devoted to diversifying the revenue
stream and introducing the anti-aging and stem cell products and
services to new customers, the new operations will provide
opportunities to increase customer base and create cross-sell
opportunity for the Group.

* for identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In the past year, the Company further acquired certain exclusive
licences on the patents. The Company is exploring possible
options to commercialise them. With improved living standards
and the aging population, people become more health conscious
and there will increase the demand for the anti-aging application
and related service. The Board believe that anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses would provide good opportunities for
the development of future business of the Group. The Group will
continue to explore various approaches to promote and publicize
the anti-aging application and related service to encourage
customers to use our products and services.

TRADING BUSINESS

The turnover from the trading business for the year amounted to
approximately HK$289,521,000 (2014: HK$663,036,000),
representing a decrease of 56% as compared to the last year. The
decline in turnover was due to the Group reduced its sales of
metal which generate lower profit margin. The segmental loss
was approximately HK$11,742,000 (2014: HK$14,967,000). The
Group will continue to attempt to broaden the customer base and
diversify our trading products to increase its revenue stream and
improve the financial performance.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

During the year under review, the Group operates its money
lending business through Asia Honest Finance Limited, which
holds a money lenders licence under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong). As at 31 March 2015,
the loan receivables and interest receivables were approximately
HK$96,628,000 (2014: HK$95,088,000) and HK$861,000 (2014:
HK$1,019,000) respectively. During the year under review, the
revenue from loan interests was approximately HK$14,313,000
(2014: HK$4,512,000). The average interest rate charged by the
Group was approximately 16.00% (2014: 16.60%) per annum.
Customers included individual and corporations providing secured
and unsecured loans, the credit terms of outstanding loans
granted by the Group to the customers ranged from six months to
one year. In view of significant demand in the market, the Group
intends to maintain the loan portfolio with a prudent manner in
order to generate a healthy cash flow and steady returns.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT

In view of the current market environment, the Board considered
that it is a suitable time for the Company to take a more active
approach in gaining short term investment returns. The Company
decided to include short term securities investment as one of its
principal business activities. As at 31 March 2015, the Company
had held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$38,245,000
(2014: HK$69,588,000). During the year, the Company recorded a
realized loss on disposal of Hong Kong listed securities of
approximately HK$12,158,000 (2014: gain of HK$8,527,000) and an
unrealized loss of Hong Kong listed securities of approximately
HK$24,228,000 (2014: gain of HK$23,140,000), representing the fair
value change on held-for-trading investments. The Board will
continue to monitor the market conditions and its performance.

HOTEL OPERATIONS

In 2014, the Group established a special purpose subsidiary for
operating the hotel business, hamely Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi
Hotel Company Limited (“Tianxi Hotel”), and entered into () the
lease agreement to lease the hotel property located in Jiangxi
Province, the PRC in April 2014, and (ii) the management
agreement to obtain certain management services in respect of
the hotel operations. During the year under review, the turnover
of hotel operations amounted to approximately HK$4,076,000
(2014 Nil) and recorded a segmental loss of approximately
HK$9,677,000 (2014 Nil). The trial operation of the Tianxi Hotel has
commenced in October 2014. However, the construction of
certain facilities has not been completed and as a result the
operation of Tianxi Hotel has not yet been formally commenced.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15 June
2015, the Group has agreed to dispose the hotel operations.
Having considered the business trends of the hotel operations,
including but not limited to the hotel room rates, customer
demand and the net loss making position attributable to the hotel
operations for the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board
considered that (i) the hotel business was no longer a
commercially attractive option to the Group in view of the
uncertain operating environment; (i) the disposal would enable
the Company to dispense with the need for further capital
injection into Tianxi Hotel; (iii) the disposal would avoid further
costs that would be incurred under the lease agreement and the
management agreement; and (iv) the disposal would enable the
Group to focus its resources on its other business and reallocate
its resource to other investment opportunities. All the conditions
of the disposal have been fulfilled and the completion of the
disposal took place on 19 June 2015. Upon completion, the Group
would discontinue its hotel operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately HK$324,155,000 (2014: HK$679,891,000) from
continuing operations. The significant decrease in turnover was
mainly derived from the trading business.

The administrative and other operating expenses for the year was
approximately HK$78,500,000 (2014: HK$74,244,000) from
continuing operations, which included a non-cash expenses of
HK$4,487,000 (2014: HK$2,539,000) relating to the share-based
payments to certain consultants of the Company.

During the year under review, the loss from continuing operations
for the year was approximately HK$88,561,000 (2014:
HK$132,837,000). The loss from continuing operations was mainly
attributable to the held-for-trading investments incurred the
realized and unrealized loss of approximately HK$36,386,000
(2014 gain of HK$31,667,000) on listed securities investments.
The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$81,134,000 (2014: HK$152,201,000) and the 10ss
per share was 2.05 HK cents (2014: 4.14 HK cents).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had net current assets
approximately HK$137,913,000 (2014: HK$218,327,000) and the
cash and bank balances was approximately HK$12,099,000 (2014:
HK$47,718,000). The Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
borrowings (2014: Nil). The gearing ratio of the Group, being the
ratio of total liabilities to total assets, was approximately 16.5%
(2014: 21.5%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, there has been no change in the capital structure
of the Company. The capital of the Company mainly comprises
ordinary shares and capital reserves.
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MATERIAL EVENTS

Discloseable Transaction — Provision of financial
assistance

On 27 March 2015, a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”)
entered into between Asia Honest Finance Limited (“Asia
Honest"), and a customer A (as the borrower, being an individual
and an independent third party) and his wholly-owned company
(as the mortgagor). Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Asia Honest
has agreed to grant a secured loan in the amount of
HK$27,389,676 to customer A for a term of 6 months that secured
by the legal charge in respect of land located in Hong Kong.
Details of the Loan Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 March 2015.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi and considers that the impact of foreign
exchange exposure of the Group is minimal.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any material charge
on assets (2014: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2015, the Group employed a total of 146 (2014
136) full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the
year under review, the total remuneration to employees, including
Directors’” emoluments and retirement benefits amounted to
approximately HK$28,873,000 (2014: HK$32,346,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance,
qualification, experience and the prevailing industry practice.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).
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LITIGATION

On 14 March 2014, LST Operating Limited, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as the defendant and as the
tenant) received an amended writ of summons in the High Court
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Based on the
statement of claims, the plaintiff as the landlord claimed against
the defendant for the outstanding rent, service charges, rates,
interest, costs and damages to be assessed. On 29 December
2014, the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region has granted an order that the plaintiff's claims against LST
Operating Limited be dismissed.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Discloseable transaction — Disposal of listed securities
Oon 12 May 2015, the Company disposed 23,410,000 shares of
China Assurance Finance Group Limited, the issued shares of
which are listed on GEM (stock code: 8090) through a securities
broker for the gross sale proceeds of HK$25,751,000 (excluding
transaction costs). Details of the disposal of listed securities were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2015.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 15 June 2015, Life Length Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited* (the “Vendor”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement with the
purchaser, pursuant to which the Vendor has agreed to dispose
of the entire registered capital in Tianxi Hotel and the
shareholder’s loan due to the Vendor by Tianxi Hotel to the
purchaser (the “Disposal”) subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein, for a consideration of RMB5 million to be
satisfied in cash. All the conditions of the Disposal have been
fulfilled and the completion of the Disposal took place on 19 June
2015. Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group would no
longer have any equity interest in Tianxi Hotel and discontinue its
hotel operations. Details of the Disposal were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 June 2015.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2015/2016, the Group will continue to enhance
the anti-aging and stem cell businesses. In this regard, the Board
will constantly keep reviewing the Group's strategies and
operations with a view to improve the business performance. In
view of the growth potential in the PRC market, we intend to
further develop our business in the PRC. We will continue to
search and identify other products and service to broaden our
revenue stream as well as explore other investment opportunities
to expand and diversify our business portfolios.

APPRECIATIONS

I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, customers, business partners
who have been offering their support, confidence and
encouragement to us. Not to mention the great devotion,
diligence and effort of the management and the members of staff
who tirelessly committed themselves in striving for improvements
of the Group. With all these supports remain, we shall continue to
explore means to improve the Group's performance and provide
investment returns to the investors.

Lam Kuo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
EHEIT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (“Mr. Lin"), aged 65, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 23
September 2013. Mr. Lin is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 30 years healthcare
management experience. Mr. Lin is currently the president of
Shanghai Health Kind Hospital Management Co., Ltd.* and Wuxi
Sun Qu Feng Huang Hospital Co. Ltd.* respectively.

Ms. Ding Xiaomei (“Ms. Ding"), aged 36, was appointed as an
executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 22 August
2014. Ms. Ding has many years of experience in corporate
management. She obtained the People’s Republic of China
Commercial Vocational Skills Certificate of International Financial
Investment Planning — Financial Planner in 2009. Ms. Ding is
currently a director of a company incorporated in the PRC.

Mr. Lu zZhiqiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
on 30 September 2011. Mr. Lu is also the compliance officer, the
authorized representative and the directors of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from Central State University of the United States of
America and a Bachelor Degree in Engineering and a Bachelor
Degree in Industry from Nanchang Hangkong University. Mr. Lu
used to learning a Master of Science Degree from the International
Purchasing & Supply Chain Management Audencia NANTES.Ecole
de Management. He is the leadership development chairperson of
Lions Club in Shenzhen. Mr. Lu has many years experience in
management and investment. He was the managing director of
Chin Mining Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Lu is an executive director of
Global Energy Resources International Group Limited (stock code:
8192) and a non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (stock code: 1041).
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Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 48, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 19 October 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive Director on 30 November 2009. Mr.
Chui is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
authorized representative, the agent for the service of process in
Hong Kong and the directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 15 years' experience in accounting and
auditing fields including over 10 years’ experience in other listed
companies. Mr. Chui is an executive director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) and an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148). He is also a non-executive
director of each of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (stock
code: 404) and Ngai Shun Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246).

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 47, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. He has resigned as a vice chairman of the Board
but remained as an executive Director on 22 August 2014. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural Design
and Theory from South China University of Technology. He also
holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in Landscape
Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering Degree
majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been studied in
Ecole d'Architecture Paris-la-Seine in Paris, France. He is a
Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the
PRC. In addition, Mr. Jiang was also the member of City Ecological
Planning and Construction Academic Committee* of the Urban
Planning Society of China and also was a consultant of Urban
Planning Construction and Protection of Ancient City of Lijiang,
Yunnan Province*. He has extensive experience in planning
design, architectural design, landscape architecture design,
planning management and project planning. Mr. Jiang is an
independent non-executive director of South East Group Limited
(stock code: 726).

Non-executive Director

Ms. Lam Kuo (“Ms. Lam”), aged 67, was appointed as the non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 December
2012. Ms. Lam currently is the sub-director and the shareholder of
GOLDEN DRAGON INTERNATIONAL AIR TRANSPORT COMPANY
LIMITED. She was the non-executive director and the non-
executive chairman of Zhong Hua International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1064). Ms. Lam has over 27 years’ business
experience in the mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau region.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (“Mr. Chi”), aged 46, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2010. Mr. Chi is also the chairman of each
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor of
Accountancy Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
an associate member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi has over 20 years
of experience in accounting and financial control. He is an
executive director of each of Guocang Group Limited (stock code:
559), Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 542) and e-Kong
Group Limited (stock code: 524). Mr. Chi is also a non-executive
director of China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910, re-
designated from executive director to non-executive director with
effect from 31 January 2015) and an independent non-executive
director of each of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148), Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2322), China Natural Investment Company Limited (stock
code: 8250), Perfect Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited (stock code:
1830) and L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 195). He was an executive director of GET Holdings Limited
(formerly known as M Dream Inworld Limited, stock code: 8100)
from 8 July 2010 to 4 June 2014 and an independent non-
executive director of EverChina Int’l Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 202) from 4 October 2011 to 15 August 2012.

Mr. Chan Yun Hing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 67, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Chan is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He holds a degree of Master of Business Administration
from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in Shenzhen (RITS),
China — University of Wales. Mr. Chan is currently the director
and consultant of Huizhou Da Ya Wan Hui Li Group Limited*. He is
also the Standing Committee Member of Guangdong Huizhow of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Vice
Chairman and the Secretary-General of Hong Kong Federation of
Huichow Associations Limited and the Deputy Secretary-General
of Hong Kong Federation of Guangdong Hakka Associations.
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Mr. Gui Qiangfang (“Mr. Gui”), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012. Mr.
Gui is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He holds a degree of Doctor of Business Administration
from California Southern University (formerly known as Southern
California University for Professional Studies) and as a post-
doctoral research fellow at California State University Monterey
Bay. Mr. Gui is currently the chairman of the board of GN
International Group and the chairman of World City Cooperation
Organization Committee of China. He possesses the professional
qualifications such as China Certified Real Estate Appraiser,
Certified Public Valuer and Registered Land Valuer. Mr. Gui has 20
years corporate experience and 5 years working experience in the
government of the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Hung Yat Ming (“Mr. Hung"), aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2013. Mr.
Hung is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in Mathematics and obtained a graduate diploma
in Accounting from University of Strathclyde, Glasgow. Mr. Hung
has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance and is
a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company. He is a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland
and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Hung
is an independent non-executive director of each of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292) and Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214). He was an independent non-executive
director of Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58)
from 28 February 2013 to 20 May 2015.
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OVERVIEW
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the annual report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Company is concerned to have high standards of corporate
governance. It is important because the Board believes that good
quality corporate governance would assist the management to
monitor the Company’s business activities effectively and thus
interests of the Shareholders will be well protected.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate
governance principles and practices to ensure compliance.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company had
applied the principles and complied with the principle in the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, save for the exceptions which are set out in
the relevant section below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of
dealings and such code of conduct throughout the year ended 31
March 2015.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in all
major matters of the Group, include approving and monitoring of
all policy matters, setting of objectives, annual budgets and
overall strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The day-
to-day management, administration and operations of the Group
are delegated to the senior management of the Group. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the coordination and direction of day-to-day operation and
management of the Group in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the senior management of the Group and the
Board has the full support of them to discharge its responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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The Board currently comprises ten Directors and their respective
roles in the Board are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongging

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
published at the GEM website and the Company’s website.

The profiles of each Director are set out in the “Profile of
Directors” section on pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company currently has four independent non-executive Directors
(the "INEDS") which representing more than one-third of the
Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The INEDS can assist the management to
formulate the Group’s development strategies, ensure the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company
maintains appropriate system to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. The Company has received an
annual confirmation in respect of their independence from each
of the INEDs and the Company believes that their independence
is in compliance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) among members of the
Board and between the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ").
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THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly and the Directors attended the
meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). Notice of all regular Board meetings
are duly given to the Directors at least fourteen (14) days.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail for
any decision made during the meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and final version of the
minutes are circulated to the Directors for records. All minutes of
the Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Ccompany (the “"Company Secretary”) and open for inspection
by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. INEDs who have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at such Board meeting.

During the Board meetings, the Directors determined overall
strategic direction and objectives and approved quarterly, interim
and annual results, and other significant matters.

There were 20 Board meetings held for the year ended 31 March
2015. Individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings are set out
in the table on page 22 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a balance
of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
are segregated and performed by Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr. Lu
Zhigiang respectively.

The Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and
overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy of the Group.
The CEO is responsible for the overall management and business
operations of the Group.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

The non-executive Director and all INEDs are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.

The newly appointed Director is provided with an induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Ccompany’'s operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statue, laws, rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Company had arranged, at the
cost of the Company, a professional seminar conducted by a
professional firm on topics relating to the new amendments to
the Code and associated listing rules as well as the directors’
duties. The Directors who did not attend such seminar, they had
received the relevant reading materials.

All Directors had confirmed their participating in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 March 2015.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code
provision C.3.3 of the Code. There are four members in the Audit
Committee comprising four INEDS, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth, Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr. Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat
Ming. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
and any questions of its resignation and dismissal, review the
Group’s annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, review the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems, discuss the
internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, review the Group's financial and accounting
policies and practices and to provide advices and comments
thereon to the Board.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the quarterly and half-yearly results. The Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015 had been also reviewed by the Audit Committee and
provided advice and comments thereon.

There were 4 meetings of the Audit Committee and the Audit
Ccommittee met with the external auditors of the Company twice
for the year ended 31 March 2015. Individual attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page
22 of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the code provision A.5.2 of the Code. There are
four members in the Nomination Committee comprising four
INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr.
Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of the INEDS and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for the
Directors as well as review and assess the adequacy of the
corporate governance guidelines of the Company and to
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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Board diversity policy

On 12 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code.
The Company recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional experience.
All Directors’ appointments are based on merits and considered
against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and determined the policy for the nomination of Directors.

There were 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee held for the
year ended 31 March 2015. Individual attendance of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 22
of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the code provision B.1.2 of the Code. There are
five members in the Remuneration Committee comprising one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, and four INEDS,
namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr. Gui
Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration, and to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors
and assessed performance of executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee adopted a model in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(i) of the Code, the Remuneration Committee determines,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

There were 1 meeting of the Remuneration Committee held for
the year ended 31 March 2015. Individual attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table
on page 22 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT EFHESMIS

MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings TXR#HIIREEFHEZE-_T—RHAF=A=+—HBILF
and its respective committees meetings, and general meeting EHEEEe ez RESE 2883 UANKE
during the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in the following K& 7 2815 ¢

table:

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HEEENY, HEEREEZRH

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
EE EZged ENZEEEE REZESEE FMZESEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun M E 18/20 N/A N/A N/A on
i TER NEF
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Note 1) T/MEgL (H3E 1) 6/11 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER ER
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EFRAE 20/20 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
TER TER TER
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ENEREE 20/20 N/A N/A 11 11
i i
Mr. Jiang Hongaing FRERAE 18/20 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TER TER TER
Mr. Chu Hon Pong (Note 2) REREE (W7t 2) 14/14 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
TER TER Nk
Mr. Cai Da (Note 3) e s (i 3) 6/7 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
TER TER TER
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo MWRZE 18/20 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
TER TER TER
Independent Non-executive ByF#HTES
Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEREE 20/20 44 11 11 11
Mr. Chan Yun Hing P B L A 18/20 4/4 7 7 0/1
Mr. Gui Qiangfang ERFEE 18/20 4/4 11 11 0/1
Mr. Hung Yat Ming HEEBLE 18/20 4/4 11 11 11
Notes: Bt -
1. appointed on 22 August 2014 1. RZZ—NMFNAZ+=ZAEZT
2. resigned on 29 December 2014 2. R-ZT—ME+-A-+HARHE
3. retired on 4 August 2014 3. RZT—MFENANBRE
22 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the Chairman
should attend the annual general meeting. However, Ms. Lam Kuo
was unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 4
August 2014 due to her other prior engagement. Ms. Lam invited
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, an executive Director to chair and answer
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
external auditors of the Company attended the annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors” independence.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the Code, all non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings. However, certain non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company due to their other prior engagements.
Details of attendance of the general meeting are set out in the
above table.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF THE
ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules. The responsibility of the
auditors is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance and
review of the Group's system of internal control.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems and
reported its findings and made recommendations to the Board.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness
and adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control. The Board also satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget.
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REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the performance of Pan-China
(H.K.) CPA Limited (“Pan-China”) as the independent auditors of
the Company and proposed to re-appoint Pan-China as the
independent auditors at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM").

As at 31 March 2015, the fee payable to Pan-China in respect of
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the
Company are as follows:

Type of services

BREESR
Audit services ENZ RS
Non-audit services IEEAZ RS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Tze Chung (“Mr. Lam”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 March 2013. Mr. Lam is responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman and/or the CEO on governance
matters. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 March 2015.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convent such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Any vote of the Shareholders at general meetings must be taken
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The results of the poll
will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website
after each general meeting.
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SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Any enquiries from the Shareholders to the Board can be sent in
writing to the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with the Shareholders is given high priority. The
Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards of
disclosure and financial transparency through the publication of
annual, interim and quarterly reports, announcements and
circulars made through the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The Company are encouraged the Shareholders to attend general
meetings of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board
directly. The Chairman and the members of relevant committees
will be also available to answer the questions in the general
meetings.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year under review, there are no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology
businesses; (i) trading business; (iii) money lending business; (iv)
securities investment; and (v) hotel operations. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 34 to 35 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2015.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the published results, assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on
page 164 of this annual report. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves and distributable reserves
of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in Note
45 to the consolidated financial statements and consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set
out in Notes 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 22 August 2014)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (resigned as vice chairman on 22 August 2014)
Mr. Chu Hon Pong (resigned on 29 December 2014)
Mr. Cai Da (retired on 4 August 2014)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

In accordance with the Article 86(3) of the Articles, Ms. Ding
Xiaomei shall hold office until the AGM. She is subject to re-
election and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election at the
AGM.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Jiang
Hongging, Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Gui Qiangfang,
being one-third of the Directors will retire as Directors by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM
except Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence during the
year in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
INEDs are still being considered to be independent.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Profile details of the Directors are set out on pages 12 to 15 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:
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Long position in the ordinary shares of the Company
(“Shares”)

Name of Directors

Capacity

EEnE -8

Beneficial owner
EmfEA A

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun
N

Beneficial owner
EmfEA A

Ms. Ding Xiaomei
Tzt

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executives had any other interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of share in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME
Details of the share options scheme are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RARXBEBRR (KRB 28
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, the Directors were not aware of any other
person/entities (other than Directors and Chief Executive) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31 March 2015, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 99.3% of the Group’s total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 45.8% of the Group’s total purchases. Aggregate
sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were
approximately 84.5% of the Group’s sales while the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 30.0% of the
Group's sales.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued
capital of the Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
major suppliers and customers for the year ended 31 March 2015.

COMPETING INTERESTS
As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors, controlling
shareholders of the Company nor any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business which causes or may cause a significant competition
with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicity available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 16 to
25 in this annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 have been audited by the auditors of the Company,
Pan-China, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the AGM. A resolution for the reappointment
of Pan-China as the auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the AGM.

By order of the Board
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited

Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the
“"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 34 to 163, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015

Tsang Chiu Keung
Practising Certificate Number P04968
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
b 5 46 2 B2 L fth 2= W Wt g R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-1F —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
TURNOVER e 7(a) 324,155 679,891
COST OF SALES Ficf=—ID N (293,809) (665,268)
GROSS PROFIT EF 30,346 14,623
(LOSS)/GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF HEREEERE - (F5E)
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS & (12,158) 8,527
FAIR VALUE CHANGE ON HELD-FOR- BEBEERE AT EED
TRADING INVESTMENTS (24,228) 23,140
OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME Hibu s R WA S 7(b) 4,505 5,849
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER THRHEMEERX
OPERATING EXPENSES (78,500) (74,244)
FINANCE COSTS B35 & H 8 - -
FAIR VALUE CHANGE ON CONTINGENT ENRARE= AT EEE
CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 35 - 21,193
GAIN ON DERECOGNITION OF BUHTERENRARE 2 S
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE 35 31,167 =
GAIN ON DEREGISTRATION OF B 2 R EBUH R 2 W i
SUBSIDIARIES 9 4,016 -
IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AR A 20 (42,000) (131,913)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB ATER 10 (86,852) (132,825)
INCOME TAX 8% 11 (1,709) (12)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM REGECSERE > EEER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (88,561) (132,837)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AR IEEK
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED REHBRIEERL ZEE
OPERATIONS 12 - (52,121)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR NEEFE (88,561) (184,958)
34 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
it 5 458 2o B2 L il 5= o M o 2R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-ERF —T—EF
HK$'000

HK$'000

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(EXPENSE):

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or 10Ss:
Exchange difference arising on

Hit2ERE (%) :
HEAREEN DR ERm 2 RE -

MEBIINEBELZELER

FTHERT

THETT

translation of foreign operations (44) 2,715
Release of translation reserve upon o S BB A R B R B BB L (R
disposal of subsidiaries - (6,852)
Release of translation reserve upon B8 A RIERH FE 0 AF AR BR
deregistration of subsidiaries bE A 1,579 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ ZAEEHM2EmKZE (BX)
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR 1,535 (4,137)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE AEEZXHEBEXX&EE
FOR THE YEAR (87,026) (189,095)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR NEEEGERE :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
— Owners of the Company — ARNRHEAE A (81,134) (152,201)
— Non-controlling interests — JEERR R (7,427) (32,757)
(88,561) (184,958)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE  7x 4 5 {5 & B X 48 4E
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
— Owners of the Company — ARRHAEA (79.599) (157,410
— Non-controlling interests — JEERR R (7,427) (31,685)
(87,026) (189,095)
Loss per share: SREE: 15
From continuing and discontinued REFELE R
operations BRI
— Basic (HK Cents) — ZER(B) (2.05) 4.1
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 855 (OB() (2.05) 4.1
From continuing operations KB FEEEET
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARGB) (2.05) (3.70)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — &8 (B(L) (2.05) (3.70)
BEREDNEEMEBEERAR 35
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i e MR R

Asat31March2015 R-ZE—AFE=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-REF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T3
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE K& 18 32,201 23,529
Other intangible assets HibEmRAE 19 62,000 62,000
Goodwill SES 20 - 42,000
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 22 2,509 2,509
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEYZ -« BB &
plant and equipment Rz ke 37(ii) 29,694 29,658
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEERLE 126,404 159,696
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 23 90 11,163
Trade and other receivables J7E Lk B 5% % H b e Wk 0B 25 139,827 153,595
Held-for-trading investments RBIEEERE 26 38,245 69,588
Cash and bank balances e RIRITAE R 27 12,099 47,718
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS HREEEHREE 190,261 282,064
CURRENT LIABILITIES piE =R
Trade and other payables JE 1T BR 3R % LA JE 5K 29 50,615 63,737
Tax payable e BB 1,733 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES HREEEHEE 52,348 63,737
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 137,913 218,327
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Contingent consideration payable FERISRARE 35 - 31,167
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEEEALE - 31,167
NET ASSETS EEFH 264,317 346,856
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR #E
Share capital RN 31 158,013 158,013
Reserves B 45 143,280 218,392
Equity attributable to the owners of RAEIHEEB ANELER
the Company 301,293 376,405
Non-controlling interests JEFEARAE R (36,976) (29,549)
TOTAL EQUITY R 264,317 346,856
Lu Zhigiang Chui Kwong Kau
Executive Director Executive Director
HITESE HITEF
3 6 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI R

As at 31 March 2015 R=-FE—AF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RF — T &
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FHET FHBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEKREE 18 19 49
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZI%E 21 49,339 53,439
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEEALE 49,358 53,488
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries NG B 24 193,175 217,269
Trade and other receivables P Ui BR TR K At R W R TR 25 15,575 25,701
Held-for-trading investments RIEEBERE 26 38,245 69,588
Cash and bank balances B LIRTTH 27 681 19,376
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS REEEHAE 247,676 331,934
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FETH B A T8 28 730 734
Trade and other payables JE {5 BR X R B Ath B 5 Rk I8 29 2,821 866
Tax payable FESRITE 1,353 =
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEAEE 4,904 1,600
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 242,772 330,334
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Contingent consideration payable BT SARE 35 - 31,167
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEEEE - 31,167
NET ASSETS BEEFHE 292,130 352,655
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B F#E
Share capital [ 31 158,013 158,013
Reserves e 45 134,117 194,642
TOTAL EQUITY A 292,130 352,655
Lu Zhigiang Chui Kwong Kau
Executive Director Executive Director
HiTEF HITEF
EREDRERMEEERAT 3 7
F {2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
moEmEnR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

Share Non-
Share Share Special options  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total

Rx  ROEE  RHEBRE  RRERR  REEE  RHER BE  FERES L
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T ThER TERL T T TR T

At1 April 2013 RZE-ZENA-H 131,678 48,577 (39,998) 15,445 4,473 (131,456) 428,719 35,279 463,998
Loss for the year TEEER = = = - - (152.201) (152.201) (32757) (184958)
Release of translation reserve upon HENBARREREN BE

disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (6,852) - (6352) - (6,852)
Exchange differences arising on BEENFBEL R ER

translation of foreign operations - - - - 1,643 - 1,643 1072 2715
Total comprenensive expense FEERERYAE

for the year = = = - (5,209) (152,201) (157,410) (31,685) (189,095)
Issue of ordinary shares under BREARERTLRR

share placing 26,33 76022 - - - - 102,557 - 102,557
Recognition of equity-settled A

share-base payments - - - 2539 - - 2,539 - 2539
Share option lapsed - - - (17,013 - 17,013 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT - - - - - - - (33,143) (33,143)
At31March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=Z-BE=A=t+-8RK

—E-MEMA-A 158,013 524,799 (39,998) 971 (736) (266,644) 376,405 (29,549) 346,856

Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (81,134) (81,134) (7,427) (88,561)
Release of translation reserve upon MEBARRE AR

deregistration of subsidiaries i3 - - - - 1,579 - 1,579 - 1,579
Exchange differences arising on BEENEBEL B ER

translation of foreign operations - - - - (44) - (44) - (44)
Total comprehensive expense KNERRARTAE

for the year - - - - 1,535 (81,134) (79,599) (7.427) (87,026)
Share option lapsed BIREAN - - - (3,883) - 3,883 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled BaNERHALER

share-base payments DARR AL 2 30 - - - 4,487 - - 4,487 - 4,487
At31 March 2015 W=g-EF=A=t-B 158013 524799 (39,998) 1,575 79 (43895 301293 (36976 264317

3 8 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BOBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

2015
N i

Note(s) HK$'000
B 5 FH T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REREXEB2RERE

ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax bR RIS 1R
Continuing operations SELCEET (86,852) (132,825)
Discontinued operations B IF ¥ - (51,550)
(86,852) (184,375)
Adjustments for: Dot T F&RIEELFE
Interest expenses B - 1,901
Interest income B A (3,728) (5,826)
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE  BEK&
plant and equipment B W (68) =
Impairment of property, Mz BEMEBZBE
plant and equipment - 50,253
Impairment of goodwill EERE 20 42,000 140,801
Fair value change on contingent ER SR ARE 2 AT EZS
consideration payable 35 - (21,193)
Amortization of leasehold land A& £ b5 - 2
Depreciation of property, plant W -« BENMRETE
and equipment 9.272 11,384
Gain on disposal of assets HEREHEEERBE
and liabilities held-for-sale ZWs - (5,015)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal on HERHEEETREZ
held-for-trading investments BB (kas) 12,158 (8,527)
Gain on derecognition of contingent BUBRER B AR(E 2 W as
consideration payable (31,167) -
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries K& A F1EUE s 2 Wz (4,016) -
Property, plant and equipment L EN NG L
written off - 1,166
Fair value change on held-for-trading  #H{EEHKE 2 A FEE
investments 24,228 (23,140)
Equity-settled share-based payments — bAkEzs 5 A5 E & LARR (D
BEW 7R 4,487 2,539
Operating loss before change LEESEPH I ELEEE
in working capital (33,686) (40,030)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERD (L) 11,073 (9,833)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and JE WS RS R B EL At FE SR IE
other receivables w3 ) 13,811 (45,081)
Increase in held-for-trading HIEE FHE 1L
investments (5,043) =
(Decrease)/Increase in trade JE - BR SR B2 EL A FE {5 5RIE
and other payables CGRt) /1 hn (7,503) 17,718
Net cash used in operations BB R (21,348) (77,226)
PRC enterprise income tax paid B EGEMSES - (571)
Net cash used in operating activities KESEGER €558 (21,348) (77,797)
BEREDNEEMEBEERAR 39
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BOBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

2015
N i

2014
—F—mF

Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET T3
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERETHZHSRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B2 UF) B 3,685 7,775
Purchase of property, plant BEME  BE&&E
and equipment (17,938) (8,476)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEREREZ
plant and equipment FTiSsK78 68 =
Purchase of held-for-trading BEREERRE
investments - (31,608)
Deposits for acquisition for WHEmE BMEREE S
property, plant and equipment - (29,658)
Proceeds from disposal of HERHEE ZIREFTIS A
held-for-trading investments - 56,563
Payment to acquire other U E M E B EN R
intangible assets - (25,400)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HERHEHEEEN
assets and liabilities held-for-sale BEZESRANER 36 - 30,767
Net cash outflow on acquisition U BT B8 A 5], 2 3R 0 SRR
of subsidiaries 34 - (4,105)
Net cash used in investing activities WA EEFTAEIR S F 58 (14,185) (4,142)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REBMETHZ2ESRE
ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issue of BT L RARFTSRIEF 5
ordinary shares 31 - 102,557
Interest paid BAFE - (1,901)
Net cash generated from financing WMEEFFAER S FEE
activities - 100,656
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeERRESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR),#nEEE (35,533) 18,717
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHzHERASZEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 47,718 29,157
Effects of foreign exchange rate HNEEFE R BB 2 2B
changes (86) (156)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZEELEASZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 12,099 47,718
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND BERASEENIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRI TR 12,099 47,718
40 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is situated
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The
principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Unit
2704, 27/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses; (i) trading business; and (iii)
money lending business; (iv) securities investment; and (v)
hotel operations. The Group had discontinued its funeral
and related businesses in last year (see note 12).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") effective for accounting periods beginning on
after 1 April 2014.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27

BB HREERE 105 - DAV IERE %R
FVRFRRBEBGFTENFE 275 2 1E5]

REER

LEEH

EAEGRERMERAER AT ([ARRAF IR
BHRSHESARNEIET) RS S EMK
U RERRERAR - ERNHNREEHER S
FrBEMRAR(TE AT Bl ER(TAIZER D £
M e A A &) 5 ¥ =5 B £z 7 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands, British West
Indies e RRRIEBEAZ EZLEMBURNRE
BT BT 168-200 5k @ O E 2718 2704

=
= °

FAMBRRAARBNEEEETIIER -

ARRRIREERAR - KRR REWMB AR
(fifl [AEE D 2 X EXB RO NRELBA
MEMER : (VB 5 FH  (REXRF V)
BHRE  RWEELE - AREREFER
IFE S EES MR RS (RRE12) -

RS RESTERMEREERN
(TEEMBHRELEMN])

RAFER AEEBGRAEAUTHESESS
fhag([EEEMAg BN _-F—MF
MA—HBRZ&FRBZ T BRERZHFT R
BIERTER - BRT B ([#F] MG ERT R A
AT ERE AR ]) o

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32
BRAGERFE R 285
Amendments to HKAS 36
BAGERFE 369 285
Amendments to HKAS 39
BAGERF 99 21EE]
Hong Kong (IFRS Interpretations

Committee) (“HK(FRIC)")-Int 21
H5 (BB BHREZREEES) -R2BE 2%

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
HHEMGEERMBEE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
FERI IS B E 2 AR El & RE A BR

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PTEMB TR 2 BAONER RERGHEZIEE

Levies

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

42

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The Group has applied amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and introduce an exception to
consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except
where the subsidiaries provide services that relate to the
investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required
to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be
met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

. obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

. measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have
been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity, the directors of
the Company consider that the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
Statements.

—AF=A=1T—HIFE

2.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — =

5 MBS R R Mk

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in
the current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify
existing application issues relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation
and settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset, the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or on
the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 36 require disclosures on additional information about
the fair value measurement when the recoverable amount
of an asset or a cash generating unit is measured at fair
value less costs of disposal. An entity shall disclose the level
of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurement of the asset or cash generating unit is
categorised in its entirety. The Group is required to make
additional disclosures for Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy:

o a description of the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value less costs of disposals. If there
is any change in valuation technigues, the fact and the
reason should also be disclosed;

o each key assumption on which management has
based its determination of fair value less costs of
disposal; and

. the discount rates used in the current and previous
measurement if fair value less costs of disposal is
measured using a present value technigue.

—REZ A=+ —AIEEE

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

44

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (continued)
The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
relevant disclosures have been made regarding the
recoverable amount of other intangible assets measured at
fair value less costs of disposal on application of the
amendments to HKAS 36 (see note 19).

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the
first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39
introduce an exception to the requirements for the
discontinuation of hedge accounting in HKAS 39 if specific
conditions are met. The amendments to HKAS 39 state that
the novation of a hedging instrument is not be considered
an expiration or termination if the novation (a) is required by
laws or regulations; (b) results in a central counterparty or
an entity acting in a similar capacity becoming the new
counterparty to each of the parties to the novated derivative
and (c) does not result in changes to the terms of the
original over-the-counter derivatives other than the changes
directly attributable to the novation. For all other novations
outside the scope of the exemption, an entity should assess
if they meet the derecognition criteria and the conditions for
continuation of hedge accounting.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As the
Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of the amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies for the first
time in the current year. HK(FRIC)-Int 21 addresses the issue
as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy imposed by
government. The Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies
that the obligating event that gives rise to the liability is the
activity that triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by
legislation. The Interpretation provides guidance on how
different levy arrangements should be accounted for, in
particular, it clarifies that neither economic compulsion nor
the going concern basis of financial statements preparation
implies that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy
that will be triggered by operating in a future period.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FER#HITREEIEEMBEEERL

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IEEMBHEEEDN]) w)
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMERERZHITREETEBYE
effective HEER

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

BBV BHMELERFE I (T —HF)
HKFRS 15

BB HREAERIZE 1558
Amendments to HKFRSS

BB IEHRELER 28T
Amendments to HKFRSS

BB EHRE LR BT
Amendments to HKFRSS
BAYEHRERER] 2 1BE]
Amendments to HKAS 1
BBGEERIE 1R 2ERT
Amendments to HKAS 19

BB GFHERFE 195 2R
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

BB EAFE16H R

AR EFIERIE 38R 2 1EF]
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
ARG EAE 16K

BERGFERE AR 2(EF]
Amendments to HKAS 27
EBGEERAFE 27/ 2 ER]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

REEVEREREBATEEMERERZI
I RERT BN IME LR

Financial Instruments*

WgEITA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

P&

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

BRMBWEERN S —SFE T - FENCFELGE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle!

BEBUBHREEN T ——FE T —=F R FENGE"

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

BERMBMEER - FFE T FFEHZ FERE?

Disclosure Initiative?

HEETE

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’

AERAEE - EEHFH

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

EEABERT ZIE BT E?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

BE  EERED?

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?
B SRR 2 A2
Sales or Contributions of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture?
BB IEMEERFE 105 & WEEHAEBERANSELEBMEEHEHIRA2
BEBGFERIE 285K 21857
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
BB IERELERF 105 - BBV RS EA) KEEE  EAGAE AR ZHIIMER?
FRHLEBGEERFE 28R 2 EF]
Amendments to HKFRS 11

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations?

BEREMBREERE1FZERT Wisl AL Em 2 gt T2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 1 RZT—F+ A —BRIAERAZ FEIRAER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. ? RZT—AR"F—A—BRAAFRBZ FESRAER -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. B RZT—+tF— A —BRUARBRZFERMER -
‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. ‘ RZZB-NF—B—BHRAEFRBZ FEIRER -

The directors of the Company anticipate that except as
described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

ARABEEREY  RTXATAES - AT
MEETEBYBREEN /IS HAER
EE NP BRRBRANZE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9
was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that
were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain financial assets. The
finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected
credit loss” model for impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as
follows:

] All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subseguent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or l0ss.

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were added.
Those requirements eliminate the threshold that was
in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (continued)

J HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging
their financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a
principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at
whether a risk component can be identified and
measured and does not distinguish between financial
items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced
internally for risk management purposes as a basis for
hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to
exhibit eligibility and compliance with the
requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that are
designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined
using risk management data. This should reduce the
costs of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces the
amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities.

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with
customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;
(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
(i) Determine the transaction price;

(iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to HKFRS
2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39
or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3
are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should
only be provided if the segment assets are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13
clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of
key management personnel services. However, disclosure
of the components of such compensation is not required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis
includes all contracts that are within the scope of, and
accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9,
even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both
standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(@ the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one
of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in
a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee
and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the
additional disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety are
required. Besides, the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify
that disclosures in relation to offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report, unless the disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the most recent
annual report.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth
of high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is
no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the
notes to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed
elsewhere in the interim financial report’. The amendments
to HKAS 34 clarify that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated
by cross-reference between the interim financial statements
and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report. The other information within the interim
financial report must be available to users on the same
terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans

— Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of years
of employee service, for example, employee contributions
that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.
Specifically, contributions that are linked to services are
attributed to periods of services as a negative benefit. The
amendments to HKAS 19 specifies that such negative
benefit are attributed in the same way as the gross benefit,
i.e. attribute to periods of services under the plan’s
contribution formula or on a straight-line basis.

Besides, the amendments also states that if the
contributions are independent of the number of years of
employee service, such contributions may be recognised as
a reduction of the service cost as they fall due.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans

— Employee Contributions (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 will become effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 with early
application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the amendments to HKAS 19 will have no impact to the
Group as the Group does not have any defined benefit
plans.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation methods for property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-
based amortisation methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted only in the
following limited circumstances:

() when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue; or

(i when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define bearer
plants. Biological assets that meet the definition of bearer
plants are no longer accounted for under HKAS 41, but
under HKAS 16 instead. The produce growing on bearer
plants continues to be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 41.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively.

As the Group does not have any biological assets, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 will
have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the
equity method to account for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. As a result of the amendments, the entity can
choose to account for these investments either:

()  atcost;

(i) inaccordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

(i) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for
financial statements with annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied retrospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in
associates or joint ventures, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint
venture and associate. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that constitutes or contains a business to a joint
venture or associate in full. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that does not constitute or contain a business to a
joint venture or associate only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in that joint venture or associate.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied
prospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments provide new guidance on how to account
for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combination. Specifically, the amendments state that the
relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in HKFRS 3 and other standards should be applied. The
same requirements should be applied to the formation of a
joint operation if and only if an existing business is
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations
(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 will become effective for
financial statements with annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint
operations, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKFRS 11 will
have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify the requirements when accounting
for investment entities as well as provide relief in particular
circumstances, which will reduce the costs of applying the
Standards. Specifically, a parent entity that is a subsidiary of
an investment entity is exempted from preparing
consolidated financial statements. A parent entity which is
also a subsidiary of an investment entity and hold interests
in associates and joint ventures is exempted from applying
equity method if it meets all the conditions stated in
paragraph 4(a) of HKFRS 10.

Besides, the amendments clarify if an investment entity has
a subsidiary that is not itself an investment entity and whose
main purpose and activities are providing investment-
related services that relate to the investment entity’s
investment activities to the entity or other parties, it should
consolidate that subsidiary. If the subsidiary that provides
the investment-related services or activities is itself an
investment entity, the investment entity parent should
measure that subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss. If
an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an
interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment
entity, the entity may, when apply the equity method, retain
the fair value measurement applied by that investment
entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception (continued)

Furthermore, if a parent that is an investment entity and has
measured all of its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss, that investment entity should present the disclosures
relating to investment entities required by HKFRS 12 in its
financial statements. If an investment entity has
consolidated its subsidiary in which the subsidiary itself is
not an investment entity and whose main purpose and
activities are providing services that relate to the investment
activities of its investment entity parent, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 apply to financial statements in
which the investment entity consolidates that subsidiary.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 will
become effective for financial statements with annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

As the Company does not have any investments in
investment entities, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should
decide, taking into consideration all relevant facts and
circumstances, how it aggregates information in the
financial statements, which include the notes. An entity
does not require to provide a specific disclosure required by
a HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain a list
of specific requirements or describe them as minimum
requirements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(continued)

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method, separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

() an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

(i significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included
with related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2.

ERAMITRESTEEMEREER
(TEEMBHRELER]) @)

- RR e LA CHES R 16 )

LESN - B2 5IFEINER - IR RFT ORI T
REBZVBRREMBEREBRE - AZFE
AIABLE 2R B O BEIMNETE - HERH
BRRIMAELEZERACRAEDIEZID
HHERRLRAECEZEMEEKE  WE
VENNDEONERTEER D BEREZIER
Ri)EMARERFRERSEN D BERS
ZWER -

BE  ZETAES :

() BRERNOREMEZEFE  BEEYHHE
MHREBILBREEZTE R

(i) FEGABRBEANE-MEHRE - T
AREMA S REREER -

ZERT AR _F—RE—-F A2 RAHK
ZEFEHE M RR AR - ARFHERER

ARBEEEY AREAFTESHENE
SR AERT Pl RE B AR BGR A M RA T ERE
BREAZE -

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015



5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in the exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are disclosed in note 6.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities
at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(@)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at
the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognizes the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

5.

FEEBR Mm@

(@)

(b)

EREGNERIMEBERAT

REEE (M)
FEERRANBARZEREER S
B ()

15 74 5 1) 5K 25 L 60 B I R R 2 A o 4
HORKREZGRER - ZEEEDUH
MRAZMBAREE (BREEMEE) R
BEMRAREEHNEER  BUHHER
M B A REIE R s (RS
T Ui & ] A MR AR 20 ) ¢ R (i) T 72
ERREAFERTAREERAFE
A MATELEZRENAEEEEERD
NERRBRE - MITB AR ZEETR
EffeBE AT EIER MERRFE
BEREM R E WS R RN S RET
AT 2R MR EE R
e NERIXAEECEERLESR
HEEMARIEN D BERGRIIZE
REEVEREENTAEERERE
REBEN) - WREZESIEE B HE
RERBZEMREZ R FE HRA
HERBEBESFEREVRIFHT
B BRKAE | ARRUSBRAZ AT
B H(ER) NFERR KB LR
A —HKAEREZREZRA

EBast

W X IR MU AR 258 65T
BEEREZQTVESNE  MABETDER
AEEMEFEEECWERHRQYE
AEEREBERAERAREZAE
Ko AR ER (B Bt 4R M B S SR A R R 1 37T
RS BN WEAEER &
MELREBDER -

65

F {2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

] deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’'s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period (which
cannot exceed one year from acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

63

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages,the Group'’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for
sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

5.

/70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold
and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognized at the completion of the
service rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

()

Revenue recognition(continued)

Income arising from sales of financial instruments is
recognised on the completion of transfer of risks and
rewards to the transferee.

Dividend income from investments (including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-
for-sale investments) is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established
(provided that it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 3 1A 55 ¥R R P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

/2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

AW PR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 &% —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g

Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange difference arising on retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognized in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations (including comparatives) are
expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expense items (including comparatives) are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or l0ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 3 1A 55 ¥R R P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g

(h)

@i

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong operate a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on percentage of
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognized as an expense in profit
or loss when employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

0]

®

Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognized until
the time of leave.

Share-based payment benefits

Share options granted to employees are accounted
for in accordance with the policies set out in note 5(t)
).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

@

/6

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

®

(k)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets or liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
owneroccupied land and buildings held for use in the
supply of service, or administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described
below), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

5.

/8

—AF=A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. EEEEE @)

(continued)

(k) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (k) % BERSKEE)
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of YIZE - RS R SR R B AT AT A A AR
property, plant and equipment, after taking into RS REMFBREE(NE)  KE
account of their estimated residual value, if any, over BROR T AT E AMUSE EL AU o (BT Rl

REH  FARBERTEDERSRSE
HREH ARG ZEANEHFE
HREEEARR - TBFXMT

their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

HE i gl

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining period of lease term or 30 years
BF #) BRHH B F B sk 30 F M R 2 B4 HAE

Leasehold improvements 5%—20% per annum

HERE BF 5% £20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
B BB RS

Motor vehicles

AE

15%-33"/,% per annum
FF15% £33/,%
10-25% per annum
BF10% £ 25%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of relevant
lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit
or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Construction in progress, which represents assets
under construction, is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The cost comprises construction costs
including direct materials, labour, contractors’ fee and
overheads attributable to bringing the production
facilities to its present condition. When the assets are
completed and ready for use, the carrying amount of
the assets will be reclassified to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as set out above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

m

Intangible assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use.

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o It is technically feasible to complete the product
for it to be sold;

J Adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o The Group is able to sell the product;

o Sale of the product will generate probable future
economic benefits; and

o Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

(m)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs (continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

(n)

excluding goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 B Z=—F—AF=-—H=1—HIFFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

32

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o an initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL") (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

384

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other
than:

(@ those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

(b)  those that the entity designates as available for
sale; and

(c) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS financial
assets”)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS financial
assets”) (continued)

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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5.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, are assessed for impairment on an
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments that pass the credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for similar financial
assets. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which
the impairment takes place.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment 10ss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 3 1A 55 ¥R R P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
unless the effect of discounting would not be material,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including bank borrowing,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiary,
amounts due to directors of subsidiaries and amounts
due to related companies of subsidiaries) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price and
direct expenses that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less all
estimated expenses to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hands, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefit is remote.

5.

FEEBR @MW)

(p)

(q)

RERBREEEY
BEaReRERME  HakReF
EMERERTARFRES  BHRTE
o URABERERSEMBERE
WEAZBEABEZDARE —BRRE
ABE=EANERIPrERRBIE
BE HAREREREVERAEER
SEE O ZR|ITEX °

BERIAREE
EAEEEBEEGMAAEEE L
EEME MEBBBAREESREEE
Mg - I RE AT SEHD VR A ATES - BB
THR - MEEKRERZZEREXN
AFRRE IR FEZAEEMER
X ZBEEFIE

EBBERSRE A HRT - XEY
B E By RS o

EREEEND 2 AR SoREE
ASEMFEE MERETERERN
REE - RIFRBEEN R Z TR MR
Ko MEBFRREEGHE —BERZ A
W IFE R AR BIR S 2 TN EE =T
MAREEEZEE  TERELRIRE
& - BRIEMB BN 2 T BEMERIE o

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
group'’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
aview to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale (see (d) above), if earlier.
It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

o the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

o the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs of disposal,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the group if that person:

(

—

) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(3) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or a parent of the

Group.

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

5.

92

—AF=A=1T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(continued)

(s)

Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are the members

of the same group;

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of another entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

(3)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;,

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i); and

(7) aperson isidentified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of the parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or

obligations between related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Share-based payment transactions
(i) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(1)

@)

Share options granted to employees

For share options granted to employees,
the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The effect of the change in estimate,
if any, is recognized in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/
Cconsultants

For share options granted to suppliers/
consultants in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair value of
the goods or serves received. The fair
values of the goods or services are
recognized as expenses immediately,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustments have been made to equity
(share options reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

5.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(®

(u)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(ii) Cash-settled share-based payment
transactions
For cash-settled share-based payments, the
Group measures the goods or services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period, the
liability is remeasured at its fair value until the
liability is settled, with any changes in fair value
recognized in profit or 10ss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

)

(ii)

(iii)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2015 was approximately HK$Nil (31 March 2014:
HK$42,000,000). More details are given in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of other intangible assets

The carrying values of other intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment when there are any
indications that the carrying value of other intangible
assets may not be recoverable. The Group considered
that no fact and circumstances occurred which would
suggest that the carrying amount of other intangible
assets may exceed its recoverable amount. The
carrying amount of other intangible assets as at 31
March 2015 was approximately HK$62,000,000 (31
March 2014: HK$62,000,000).

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group's historical experience
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technologies changes. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment as at 31
March 2015 was approximately HK$32,201,000 (31
March 2014: HK$23,529,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

96

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iv) Contingent consideration payable

In last year, the Group had accounted for the
contingent consideration payable in the acquisition of
subsidiaries as detailed in Note 34 in accordance with
the provisions of HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business
Combinations. The number of shares of the Company
which would be issued as consideration of the
acquisition was subject to the financial performance
of the acquired subsidiaries. The Group determined
the provision to be made in respect of the contingent
consideration based on the fair value of the shares of
the Company at the date of acquisition of the
subsidiaries and the directors’ best estimate and
weighted probability analysis of the achievement of
financial performance in future by the subsidiaries. As
the process required input of subjective assumptions,
any changes to the assumptions could materially
affect the provision made. Subsequent gain or loss in
fair value was recognised in profit or loss. As at 31
March 2014, total provision made in respect of
contingent consideration by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$31,167,000 and was included in
contingent consideration payable. As at 31 March
2015, no provision for contingent consideration
payable was made in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to its derecognition during the
year. Details of the derecognition of contingent
consideration payable are set out in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

7. REVENUE 7. k&
(@)  An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as @ AEEFRzZB@IWTAT :
follows:

Continuing operations ISR
Anti-aging and stem cell technology # 3% & B 55 il £ 5%
business

— Stem cell technology business — BRI 16,245 12,343

Trading business BZEK

— Sales of electronic components — SHEE T EME 36,971 -

— Sales of cotton yarns — HERD - 26,199

— Sales of metals —HESE 252,550 636,837
289,521 663,036

Money Lending business Vi i

— Interest income from loan receivables — 3k & fE U & 5 2 A B U A 14,313 4,512

Hotel operation business B EEET

— Income from hotel operation — REBEEEZIRA 4,076 -
324,155 679,891

BERLEGNBEMEEERAT 9 7
F#2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. W&
(b)  An analysis of the Group's other revenue and net b)) AEEFRNHMUYERBRAFEI N
income for the year is as follows: NN

Continuing operations FFHEEE R
Exchange gain P 5 Was 1 7
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BEK
plant and equipment Bt 2 e 68 -
Interest income on: FEUA -
— Bank deposits — RITEXR 13 18
— Other loans receivables — H R E R 3,715 5,805
Rental income ASUA 372 -
Sundry income FETEIA 326 19
4,505 5,849
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMERH
2015 2014
—E—REF — T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Continuing operations FFAERE
Interest expense on bank and ARAFRBHERRITR
other borrowings wholly repayable HtEEZMNBEAX

within five years - -

There was no borrowing cost capitalized during the year FR - BEREAENMCEERA(ZE—NE
(2014: Nil). ") o
98 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

10.

GAIN ON DEREGISTRATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
deregistered two subsidiaries which were engaged in
investment in funeral and related businesses previously.
The Group submitted the liquidation financial statements of
these subsidiaries to relevant tax bureau and obtained
approval of the tax bureau to cancel the tax registration and
then the business registration in the current year. In the
opinion of the directors the Company, the Group has no
further obligations in respect of these subsidiaries.
Accordingly, the net liabilities recorded by these subsidiaries
of approximately HK$5,595,000 and translation reserve of
approximately HK$1,579,000 were released upon
deregistration of these subsidiaries. No cash flows was
recorded with respect to the deregistration of subsidiaries
during the year.

LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

Loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group has
been arrived at after charging:

10.

P A FBUHERZ IR

HE-_Z-—AF=ZA=+—HILEFE F£E
BUEMEM B AR Z M ZmEREARRE
R BB MARMERRE - AEBEMAEHR
BREXZEMBARZBEEMB®RE - IR
AEF RSB Bt/ BUB T M R H IR ER
HEEBR - ARARBEEARR  ARERZF
MEBARYEEMEE - At - ZFHEAF
Fréis 2 & fEFE 495,595,000 78 7T K b 5
#11,579,0008 7T 3% T8 A BIBUB LM & A7
B o FRIEBHTE QR BUSEME S EMIR

==
ﬁmhi ©

RERFBEERBZRANEGHA

AEBEREFELEEB ZBHAERD MK
NHIEIE

2015 2014
—E—FE —E— N5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B IA (BIEEEMHS)
— Salaries and other benefits — e REAMEF 28,201 26,737
— contributions to defined contributions — [ME R R FGR KR A ET
retirement benefits schemes H 672 838
28,873 27,575
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S5 A B <&
— audit services —EZR 750 700
— non-audit services —IEEZIRTG - 120
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - = &&REITE 9,272 7,500
Legal and professional fees (Note) EERBEER (M) 7,716 7,198
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented BRAMEYE 2RSS
premises e 12,977 13,316
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZEREE 288,817 660,449

Note: During the year, legal and professional fees included equity-settled
share-based payments in aggregated amounts of approximately
HK$4,487,000 granted to consultants of the Company (2014:
HK$2,539,000).

et FRAEREXERBERTARRRMZ AE
g 77 A E RIABD REH 2 (Y 5RA $£494,487,000

BT (ZF—M4 : 2,539,000 7T) °

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
F {2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX 11. Frife#R
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit RizaEakEt2ARERZMEHEAX
or loss and other comprehensive income represents: 15

Current tax BEATRIE
Hong Kong =5 1,729 23
PRC enterprise income tax R B 7 ZE AT IS AR - -
1,729 23
Overprovision in prior year BEFE BRI
Hong Kong B (10) (amn
PRC enterprise income tax R B 1 SEATIS T - -
(10) (11)
Tax reduction L
Hong Kong B (10) =
PRC enterprise income tax R B 7 AT IS AR - -
(10) =
Deferred tax (Note 30) IESEREIE (A2 30) - -
1,709 12
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EBNIS T T F A E 5 R R T R AT &
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for 16.5% (ZZ— D94 : 16.5%) 5T IR o
the year.
PRC enterprise income tax on the profits arising in the PRC PR EFTER DR MAEHR A T B 2 R B R
has been provided on the estimated assessable profits at FULA AR BB AT SR AT R B ©

the rates prevailing in the PRC.

1 OO HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. FisiR(a)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to AEBRMATEEER CAFEMSHAZD
the loss before tax as follows: N
2014
—T—EF
HK$'000
FHIT
Loss before tax BB RIS 1B (86,852) (132,825)
National tax on loss before tax, calculated BRELAIEE 2 BRI
at the tax rates applicable to profits EREREERER
in the jurisdictions concerned FSHRETE 17,288 23,823
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERBIRA Z g2 5,187 7,331
Tax effect of expenses not deductible and OB S I ki)
loss not allowable B BGE (18,753) (25,562)
Tax effect of temporary difference RER G s =5 2 TS
not recognised % (274) (247)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RERMETIRIEEE 2
not recognised M2 (6,013) (6,220)
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses FRIAREREARIBEE 2
not previously recognised MR 2 836 852
Tax reduction AR 10 -
Overprovision in previous year BEFE 2 BEEE 10 11
Income tax expense for the year REFRERHMAY (1,709) (12)
There was no income tax recognised in other MEMEHREMEEREREERERER
comprehensive income and directly in equity (2014 (Nil). (ZF—1F  |) o
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12. BHRIEET

On 24 July 2013, the Group entered into a sale agreement to
dispose of Qinghai Fuli Fenghuangshan Cemetery Company
Limited and Taiyuan City Wufuling Company Limited, non-
wholly owned subsidiaries engaged in funeral and related
businesses, for an aggregate consideration of
HK$33,000,000. As the management of the Company
considered the past performance and future business
prospect of the funeral and related businesses are not
positive, the disposal of the loss making businesses is in the
interest of the Company and its shareholders. The disposal
was completed on 15 October 2013. Details of assets and
liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of loss on disposal,
are disclosed in note 36. As a result of the disposal, the
Group discontinued all of its funeral and related businesses.
In accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”, their results were
therefore classified as discontinued operations.

R-_E—=FtA=-+WH  AEEFUHEE
HEHENERERBEES 2 IEZENBLR
AEEEMBRLAERGBERARRART
HEERM AR AT - 44 E 433,000,000
L MRARRIEEERABERMBESL 2
BARBRRARRERIT S WAL - BUH S
SEBZEEFAARARENBERAZF
HeoHEFEON - E—=F+F+HH%
Ko BRELEEERBBZFBRHEEEHEY
FEAERHESORIFEE - HRETHES
B AEBDRIKCLHTERERMABELR -
RIEE S BHRELRFESHR [FIEHEZIE
RBEEMERILER] EEEHSERER
=%

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 12. BRIEER @)
HE-_ZT-—WF=A=+—BILFEEHXIA

The result of the funeral and related businesses for the year

ended 31 March 2014 is as follows:

BEH 2 EEWT

Turnover e 26,896
Cost of sales SHERA (8,817)
Gross profit E 18,079
Other revenue and net income H b Yas RN FRE 4
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities classified HESHEAGIEHEZEER

as held for sale BfE2 K 5,015
Impairment loss of goodwill A REEE (8,888)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment Y - R REEBZREEBE (50,253)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR R HA G E S (13,6006)
Finance costs ISR AR (1,901)
Loss before tax RRELATE B (51,550)
Income tax FTi8%t (671)
Loss for the year REEEE (62,121)
Other comprehensive income H 2w W e
Exchange difference arising from translation of BEBINEREEZER

foreign operations =% 2,198
Release of translation reserve upon disposal of & T B D B AR R BE i,

subsidiaries it (6,853)
Total comprehensive expense for the year NEEEHEBIHEE (56,776)
Loss for the year attributable to: BN EEEE
Oowners of the Company RAREAA (28,584)
Non-controlling interests e (23,537)

(52,121)

Total comprehensive expense KEEREEE

for the year attributable to: B
Owners of the Company ZiN/NIE 2N (34,310)
Non-controlling interests eI (22,466)

(56,776)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 12. BRIEXEE @)
Loss before tax from discontinued operations of the Group REEDRIEER BB AEEDHRTIE
has been arrived at after charging: 17 :

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BTN (BREEZHE)
— Salaries and allowances — e KRR 4,605
— Contributions to defined contributions retirement — RIERREFERREAET SR
benefits schemes 166
4,771
Amortization of leasehold land TAE T EsH 2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - B REETE 3,886
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment Y%~ RE NS 2R EEE 50,253
Impairment loss on goodwill EESEAEY St 8,888
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEREZREE 8,817
Cash flows generated from discontinued FEECRLEEBELECRERE

operations of the Group

2014
T —F

HK$'000
THETT

Operating activities KR E 3,209
Investing activities K& EE (619)
Financing activities BE R (1,901)
Net cash inflows e A 689
BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
F#2015 1 03



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

13. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes a loss
of approximately HK$7,284,000 (2014: profit of
approximately HK$44,562,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s loss
for the year is as follows:

FLFRA AEGBR

HE - Z-—AF=A=1+—BIFEZAQT
BB ANEGEFABBEREE N AR RIS HE
NEE I 2 E518 497,284,000 L (ZE— W4 ¢
S FN 49 44,562,000 7T) ©

13.

PReBEEARNBREEBRHRMAT -

2014
—Z—F

HK$'000
THETT

Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit
attributable to owners of the Company
dealt with in the Company's

RARRABREREIEL
RABIEEANEIERE
(BH8), w5

financial statements (7,284) 44,562
Impairment losses recognised on investment stk & A 711% & #ER
in subsidiaries BIEE B (4,100) (166,000)
Impairment losses recognised on amounts L HE U PfT /B A B SRIE FERR
due from subsidiaries ZImEEIE (65,655) (67,627)
Reversal of impairment losses recognised 1 [0t FE L FfT B8 A R k3B
on amounts due from subsidiaries R EEE 12,027 1,413
Company’s loss for the year KRB FEEE (65,012) (187,652)
14. DIVIDEND 14. &R

No dividend has been paid during the year nor proposed for
the year (2014: Nil).

104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREBER
(@) Basic loss per share @ BREALREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on SREREBIRE TSR E

the following data:

Loss for the year attributable to RAEIER AEMS
owners of the Company AN E ETIE
— from continuing operations — REFELEER (81,134) (123,618)
— from discontinuing operations — REBKRIEEK - (28,583)
— from continuing and discontinuing — RERELER
operations B R IEFET (81,134) (152,201)

Weighted average nhumber of

ordinary shares R nEF 9
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April AN A—H 2z B BT Rk 3,950,332,805  3,291,952,805
Effects of ordinary shares issued BRTERRTE - 387,812,877

3,950,332,805  3,679,765,682

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z_—ZF—AF=HA=+—HILFZE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15. SEEE &)

106

(b) Diluted loss per share
For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
granted under Share Option Schemes (Note 32)
because the exercise price of those options was
higher than the average market price.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
March 2015 and 2014 has not been disclosed as the
potential shares arising from exercise of the
Company's share options and contingent
consideration shares would decrease the loss per
share of the Group for these years and are regarded
as anti-dilutive.

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segment information is based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (“CEQ").

During the year, as the Group intended to develop the

16.

(b) ESREEEHE
HE_ZT-—HAFL-_T-WF=A
=T BULFE AEEREIEER
I B R R AR AR IR B AR =1 & (M =
32) T 2 BRI TE - LT AN E
BREZTEERNFHNE -

R AR AR O R s AR E R 1T
EHELEZEBEERMBRIBE-F
—hAER-T-NOE=ZA=1+—HLF
EzERER RESARBEZE

BWREREZEFEZSREEEE -

SERH
AEEZKEDRENTIRBALRERE -
ZERERLTELDRRANERRITHAE
([TTB ML ) E AR -

RAFEE  ARAREEERHEEEIESFK

investment in securities held-for-trading as one of its BRERKAEFEER 2 —  (THAHRER
principal business activities, the CEO considered the EEBEBHFREREHAIMENTH - Itt ZIN
investment in securities held-for-trading as a new reporting SEFEEERSFRECKRERADEEE
segment. Accordingly, the Group's performance of TN BEREFRENE tb@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁai%ﬁf
investment in securities held-for-trading was reclassified YA ERFEZ25 A -

from the unallocated segment to securities investment

segment. The comparative information has also been

re-presented to conform with the current year's

presentation.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under BEBEMBRELEREST - NEE 2 LE
HKFRS 8 are as follows: RAIRESFENAT

(@ Anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses;

(b)  Trading business,

(c)  Money lending business;

(d) Securities investment business;

(e) Hotel operation business; and

()  Funeral and related businesses (classified as

discontinued operations at the end of the last
reporting period)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 16. SEWEE @)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 5.

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the CEO monitors the results, assets and
liabilities to each reportable segments on the following
basis:

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) from each
segment including items disclosed in other segment
information below, net of administrative and other operating
expenses directly attributable to each segment without
allocation corporation income and expenses, finance costs,
gain on deregistration of subsidiaries, gain on derecognition
of contingent consideration payable, impairment of goodwill,
impairment of property, plant and equipment and gain on
disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held-for-sale.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of intercompany
receivables and other corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
managed directly by the segments with the exception of
intercompany payables and other corporate liabilities.

AMEN R RRERNEBMES At
SRR -

RIFERDEERKRIFE - ITBAREIRATE
EERRAMENBRIES  BENAE:

NEEERES B ST (BR)  BERT
XEMDBERKEZER - MRS DB
TR R EMEERS - MAD EEERAKR
X MBER - HEQRBUAEMZ e - B
HERENIAREZRE  BERE D
¥ BELRBHREANLEREHEEER
Bz -

DHEEEBRMABANEE  BIEEENRH
BE WABRARMEYFGENAMERE
7= o

DHRBEBRNREREE ZENERR M
N RIE - T BERAREEMNREREME
EaE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 16. HEEE (#)
Information regarding the above segments is reported BELMDEZERZ50T -
below:
(@ Segment revenues and results (@ 2BUER¥EE

Continuing operations Discontinuing operations
BESELE BALER
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money  Securities Hotel Inter- Funeral
technology Trading lending investment operations  Segment and related

business  business  business  business  business elimination Total hbusinesses
AEER
Bl BERE il RB#ER
Rk HE¥B  REER ¥%  EEXE SRHH# 28 HBEK -t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tan TF#Ex TF#Ex TFHEr Fhx Thx Thx Fhn Thn

Revenue izt

External customer IREE 16,245 289,521 14,313 - 4,076 - 324,155 - 324,155

Inter-segment Pl - - - - - - - - -
Total ki) 16,245 289,521 14,313 - 4,076 - 324,155 - 324,155
Segments results PEEE (21,669)  (11,742) 13,195 (36,386) (9,677) - (66,279) - (66,279)
Impairment of goodwil BERE (42,000) - (42,000)
Unallocated corporate income RABEERA 3716 - 3716
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEMAY (17,472) - (17,472)
Finance costs HIER - - -

Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries K

4,016 - 4,016
Gain on derecognition of contingent
consideration payable 31,167 - 31,167
Loss before tax HAIEE (86,852) - (86,852)
1 08 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s A B3 R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 16. HEEHE @)
(@ Segment revenues and results (continued) (@) DEWEREEE)

rations

Anti-aging &
¥ Money  Securities Hotel Inter- Funeral
Trading lending  investment  operations Segment and related
business business business business  elimination Total  businesses Total

£y £y e
HK$'000

TEL

Revenue 653

External customer IREE 12,343 663,036 4512 = = = 679,891 26,39 706,787

Inter-segment AEE 500 - - - = (500) = = =
Total @8 12,843 663,036 4512 = = (500) 679,891 26,89 706,787
Segments results HEEE (29,883) (14,967) 143 31,667 - - (13,040) 4477 (8,563)
Impairment of goodwill BERE (131,913) (8,888) (140,801)
Impairment of property, N%  BERZEAE

plant and equipment = (50,253) (50,253)
(Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities HEANFAAHEE

classified as held-for-sales BERAF WS - 5015 5015
Unallocated corporate income RABEERA 30,736 - 30,73
Unallocated corporate expenses FAEEERY (18,608) = (18,608)
Finance costs HBER = (1.901) (1.901)
Loss before tax RAiga (132,825) (515500 (184379)

BERLEGNBEMEEERAT 1 09
F#72015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 16. SWMEH @)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERESR
Continuing operations Discontinuing operations
BESEEYR BRLER
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Securities Hotel Funeral
technology Trading lending  investment operations and related
business business business business business Total businesses Total
hEER
Bl BHR BE RHER
RiirER LV ES S HEER S BEEE i) HEER ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhL T Thx j TAn Thx FhL TAR
Segment assets PREE 20,869 57,577 105,514 38,245 14,600 236,805 - 236,805
Unallocated assets KAEEE 79,860 - 79,860
Consolidated assets BABE 316,665
Segment liabilities HHEEE 44,173 887 430 - 2,684 48,174 - 48,174
Unallocated liabilities ROBRE 4,174
Consolidated liabilities ~ HAEE 52,348

Continuing operations Discontinuing operations
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Securities Hotel Funeral
technology Trading lending investment operations and related
business husiness business business husiness Total businesses

2

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"OOO HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL 7870 TEL T AT T
Segment assets PREE 28,600 72829 101,333 69,588 = 272,350 = 272,350
Goodwill B 42,000 42,000 - 42,000
Unallocated assets RABEE - 127,410
Consolidated assets GREE 441,760
Segment liabilities HHEE 51,742 5313 2% - - 57,079 - 57,079
Unallocated liabilities ROBAE 37,82
Consolidated liabilities ~ HAEHE 94,904
1 1 O HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 16. HEEH @)
(c) Other segment information () EHtvplaas
Continuing operations Discontinuing operations
BREEER BRILER
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Securities Hotel Funeral
technology Trading lending  investment operations and related
business business business business business Total businesses Total
hEER
B E5RE il RER
iR LU REER £% BEEEK o) HEEE ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhL AR Thx T AL THEL T AL
Interest income* FIEBA 1 9 - - 2 12 - 12
Interest expenses FERX - - - - - - - -
Depreciation and FEREH
amortization 4,973 2,708 - - 1,160 8,841 - 8,841
Impairment of goodwill HERE 42,000 - - - - 42,000 - 42,000
Additions to non-current  RAEERE
segment assets E 30kl
during the year PEEE 2,694 2,355 - - 12,889 17,938 - 17,938
* Exclude interest income in turnover. * TEIEELEE Y F B8 UA

Continuing operations Discontinuing operations
fi 2 BRILER
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Securities Hotel Funeral
technology Trading lending investment operations and related
business business business business business businesses

EBEEE

HKS 000
T

Interest income* IS WA * 1 13 - - - 14 3 17
Interest expenses FERX - - - - - - 1,901 1,901
Depreciation and REREHE

amortization 4,687 2,305 = = = 6,992 3886 10,878
Impairment of goodwill AERE 131,913 - - - - 131913 8,888 140,801
Impairment of property,  91% - BER

plant and equipment KERE = - - - - - 50,253 50,253
Additions to non-current ~ RAEERE

segment assets i)

during the year PERE 10,393 35,666 - - - 46,059 622 16,681

* Exclude interest income in turnover. * TEIEE L EHE 2 FEIWA -
EREDRERMEEERAT 1 1 1
F#2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

16. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 16. HEEE (#)
(d) Geographical information d) HEER
The Group operates in the People’ Republic of China REBRPEARENE(TIBIEEH)
(excluding Hong Kong) (“PRC") and Hong Kong. ([FRE) REERE o
The following is an analysis of the revenue from LT AREEmBE D 2 INRE P 2
external customers by location of operations and mMNEREEWRE D ZIERDEEY
information about its non-current assets by location of BEROH
assets:
Revenue
from external Non-current
customers assets
HREFE
2 Wi FERBEE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FTHT FHET
Hong Kong B 28,142 49,655
PRC i 296,013 76,749
324,155 126,404

Revenue
from external Non-current
customers assets
INPRZ =
2 WEs EREEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET

Hong Kong BB 16,166 38,273
PRC = 690,621 121,423
706,787 159,696
(e) Information about major customers (e) FEEFZEHR
Analysis of revenue from transactions with a single AT ABEAREBEE10%HIA L2 BE—
external customer amount to 10% or more of the INREFER G 2 Weamn i -

Group’s revenue is as follows:

Operating segment External customer
ReESE HREF
Number Revenue
2 A L

2015 2014 2014
—E-1F —T—MF —T—mF
HK$'000

FHET

Trading business CUEY 4 2 265,784 602,514
1 —I ) HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 17. EERLEREHFERCHE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEM£

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENSENRARSES 2w T ¢

Company'’s directors are as follows:

2015

e
HK$'000
FET

Salaries
and other
benefits

FER
HitgR
HK$'000

TET

Discretionary
bonus

and
performance
related
incentive
payments
BiFEAR
R
REASR
HK$'000
FTER

Contributions
to retirement
benefits
schemes

BHEFR
B
HK$'000

Tz

Fob
HK$'000
THET

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Jiang Hongging EHEEE 504 - - - 504

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun LN SEb 504 - - - 504

Mr. Lu Zhigiang EFREE 504 - - - 504

Mr. Chu Hon Pong (Note a) RERSE (Hzta) - - - - _

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau Bk - 640 - 18 658

Mr. Cai Da (Note b) B S A (HED) 120 - - - 120

Ms. Ding Xiaomet (Note c) TNz L (Hitc) 307 - - - 307

Non-executive Director FHTES

Ms. Lam Kuo MXEE 1,000 - - - 1,000

Independent Non-executive  BIYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth SEBEE 100 - - - 100

Mr. Chan Yun Hing e P L 4 A 100 - - _ 100

Mr. Gui Qiangfang (e Sapt 100 - - - 100

Mr. Hung Yat Ming StARR A 100 - - _ 100
3,339 640 18 3,997

Note a:  Resigned on 29 December 2014. Hfita: RZITB-—HE+ZAZ+NBEHE-
Note b:  Retired on 4 August 2014. fizEb: RZE—EENAEARE-
Note c.  Appointed on 22 August 2014. HfizFec: RZZ—WFNAT_AEZF-

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
F {2015

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 17. EERAEREHERZME (&)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued) iy E=#M< @)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENRENARARSESE2MES0T -

Company’s directors are as follows:

2014 —E-mEF

Discretionary

bonus

and
performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
and other incentive benefits
benefits paymens schemes

"HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FTHAIT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Hongqing EHERE 504 - - - 504
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Note a) Wt (HaFa) 263 - - - 263
Mr. Lu Zhigiang BEEREE 504 - - - 504
Mr. Chu Hon Pong KEHEE = = = = =
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau ERIEE - 529 - 15 544
Mr. Cai Da Bk 566 - - - 566
Ms. Li Mei (Note b) =gt (Hatb) 100 - - - 100
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo MX &t 1,000 - - - 1,000
Independent Non-executive B FHTES
Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMRE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chan Yun Hing FRBE S 4 100 - - - 100
Mr. Gui Qiangfang TR A 100 - - - 100
Mr. Hung Yat Ming HAREE 100 - - - 100
3,337 529 - 15 3,881
Note a:  Appointed on 23 September 2013. Weta: MZE—=FNAZT=AEZF-
Note b: Retired on 1 August 2013. Hiztb: HZZT—=F\A—HBR{E-
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the RAFERN  NEEWES NS TE
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join A2 B E A DI AN & B R i TR 5| 18 5 0
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for the AREB 2 RESIERBERFBE(ZE
loss of office (2014: Nil). —PO%F : &) o
There was no emoluments waived by any directors FAW BT ESHEE -
during the year.
The directors consider that they are the only key EERG BRERLEEXHTEER
management personnel of the Group and details for AE BABRSME2FBEER EXH
their emoluments have been set out above. 3l
1 1 4 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 17. EERAERESHEAZME &)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(ii) Five highest paid employees (i) EERSHFEER
During the year, the five highest paid individuals FAN AAEETATERERAG(ZE
included 2 (2014: 2) directors, details of whose —MOF - MB)ES - BEESHNe2F
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of BERLEXHS - B THERFIEEEA
the remaining non-director highest paid individual are TZBelnT -
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Salaries and other benefits & & H AT 5,222 4,125
Contributions to retirement benefits RIRAEA TSI 51
schemes 53 39
Discretionary and performance 15 I 7 3R B A 2R 1< K

related incentive payments - =

5,275 4,164

Emoluments of the non-director highest paid BaFFEFATZHEN T TIIEER :
individual(s) fell within the following bands:

Number of individual(s)
AE

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 T8 5T % 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T & 3,500,000 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T & 4,500,000 7% 7T 1 -
EREDRERMEEERAT 1 1 5
F {2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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WA 5 2R R P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The Group

Leasehold
Buildings improvements

L 5 RERE
HKS'000 HK$'000

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B KB
e
HK$'000
TAL

Motor
Vehicles

RE
HK$'000
FHL

18. V¥ - BERERE
NEE

Construction
in progress

HRIR
HK$'000
THL

Leasehold
land

BELH
HK$'000

Total

#a
HK$'000
FHT

Cost: AR

At1 April 2013 R-Z-=FRmA—-A 98,434 57,443 14,916 10,539 - 204 181,626

Additions AE = 4,388 1,665 2423 - - 8476

Acquisition of subsidiaries EEHB AR - 515 33% - - - 850

Transfer to assets held for sale BITRFRERE (98,434) (48,417) (4,681) (3980) - (290) (155,806)

Disposal bl - (1,150) (661) - - - (1,811)

Exchange adjustments 58 = () 9 69 - - 77
At 31 March 2014 and at 1 April 2014 R-E-ME=A=+-AR

—“5-MERA-A - 12,778 11,583 9,051 - - 3412

Additions B = 8,482 1,570 4717 3170 = 17,939
Disposal HE - - (6) - - - )
Exchange adjustments X A= - 3 2 7 (1) - il
At31 March 2015 K-E-RF=A=1-R - 2263 13149 13775 3169 - 51,35
Accumulated amortization, depreciation  R&tEsH « EREE :

and impairment

At1 April 2013 R=Z-=FRmA—-A 27131 18,140 3515 3620 = 267 52,673

Impairment fE 32,146 16,881 967 259 = = 50,253

Charge for the year FEEBR 2,158 5232 2,454 1,540 - 2 11,386

Transfer to assets held for sale BRTREHELE (61,435) (35,407) (3.252) (3,424) - (269) (103,787)

Disposal HE = (383) (262) = = - (645)

Exchange adjustments EHHRE = ] 2 3 - - 3
At 31 March 2014 and at 1 April 2014 R-E-ME=R=+-AR

—“-MEMA-A = 4461 3424 1,998 - - 9,883

Charge for the year FERRA - 4,692 2,261 2,319 - - 9,272
Disposal He - - (@ - - - (@
Exchange adjustments 5 AE - 2 1 1 - - 4
At 31 March 2015 W-Z-RE=A=1-H = 9,155 5,682 4318 = = 19,155
Net carrying amount: REHE

At 31 March 2015 R-E-H%=A=t-H - 12,108 7461 9,457 3169 - 32,201

At 31 March 2014 R-E-mE=R=+-H = 8,317 8,159 7,083 - - 23529
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b O WM HS SRR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. V¥ - RERE (&)
(continued)
The Company AN

Furniture,
fixture, and
equipment
B# - B

R&E
HK$'000
TATT

Cost: B
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FWA—H 142
Addition NE -
At 31 March 2014 and at 1 April 2014 R-ZE—ME=A=+—HK
—T-NHEMA—H 142
Addition NE -
At 31 March 2015 R=ZZE—RF=A=+—H 142
Accumulated depreciation and AT E RREEE ¢
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FWMA—H 60
Charge for the year FEEAR 33
At 31 March 2014 and at 1 April 2014 R-Z—WNFE=A=1+—HK
—ZE—MFEm™A—AH 93
Charge for the year FEEH 30
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—H 123
Net carrying amount AREFE :
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—H 19
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—MWF=A=+—H 49

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. HftEREHRE

The Group
Licences
rEE

wAR
HK$'000
BT

Cost: ID%NE
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FWMA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiary Uit B Ff /8 1 &) 62,000
At 31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 R-Z—WNFE=A=+—H  —_F—WF
and at 31 March 2015 L BEATAR=®TREF=A=TCA G200 |
Accumulated amortisation and Rt E R ERE
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and RZE—=FMA—H —=T—MF
1 April 2014 —A=+—HE-_ZF—WNFMUYA—H -
Recognised for the year FEER -
At 31 March 2015 L R=FE-AS=A=Y-HE T
Net carrying amount ARHEFE :
At 31 March 2015 R-—E—hAF=A=+—H 62,000
At 31 March 2014 R=ZZE—mF=A=+—H 62,000
The other intangible assets represent 3 exclusive licences HEmEPEEREEAFFHEARMAKENRERF
on 3 patents granted by the holders to a subsidiary acquired BREZIBEN 2 =B - BRI B
in last year. Details of acquisition of other intangible assets NEEGHMEREE 2 FIBHMNMIFESS -

through acquisition of a subsidiary are set out in note 33.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the BIHRENER R MERF RS AER -
remaining useful lives of the exclusive licences.

1 1 8 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. HthiEREE @)
Details of the useful life of the exclusive licences are as BRI FERAFEFEET -
follows:

Expiry date of exclusive
licence granted to subsidiary

BRFHBARZ

Particulars of patent BERIFHE BRFFUEZHA
Method for constructing pancreatic —7&ER B ABRENBRRSAEZNE 25 November 2031
stem cell line from human insulin BN AREE =S AR S L E % —ZE=—%+—A=+HH

and differentiating to insulin
secretion cell

Injectable temperature sensitive gel —& F pAE f ELE 18 ST I8 4R 4% A AT JE 5T 10 June 2031
used for filling and repairing U B —E=—%FA+H
damaged tissues

Injection gel containing submicron  —#& & 7 25 oK 4% 5 BR 8 BE Bk Y T 5 10 June 2031
hyaluronic acid microspheres and 5 B2 B 844 75 % —T=—%xA+H
preparation method

As the management has still engaged in designation of BN ERENERTFREETE - BRTA
detailed production plan, the exclusive licenses have not yet BERERNGBERERMEFFZRERERTE AR
been in the location and condition necessary for them to be 1 o R AN R0 AR o

capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Hence, no amortization is recognized for the
year.

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. RtiEBRE @)

120

The recoverable amounts of other intangible assets at the
end of the reporting period have been determined by the
directors of the Company on the basis of a fair value less
costs of disposal calculation using excess earning method
under income-based approach with reference to a
professional valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal
Limited. The recoverable amounts are based on certain key
assumptions, including projected selling price, sale volume,
and selling and administrative cost. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation uses present value of profits
attributable to other intangible assets after deducting the
proportion of profits that are attributable to other
contributory assets and at a post-tax discount rate of
20.82% (2014: 23.41%). The profit forecast was based on the
latest estimation approved by the Group’s management
covering useful lives of the exclusive licenses. The Group
measured the fair value less costs of disposal of the other
intangible assets assuming their highest and best use by
market participants.

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amounts
of other intangible assets were higher than their carrying
amounts, and accordingly no impairment loss was
recognized during the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation of other

intangible assets was classified as Level 3 measurement
under fair value hierarchy.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

20. GOODWILL 20. 5

Cost: B -
Balance at beginning of year FHNEER 212,227 208,144
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uit B Bft /28 1 &) - 4,083
Derecognition upon deregistration of B8 A RIEUH S R BB iR
subsidiaries (10,109) -
Balance at end of year FERERR 202,118 212,227
Accumulated impairment losses: REEHREEE ¢
Balance at beginning of year FOEE R (170,227) (29,426)
Derecognition upon deregistration of M8 A RIHUE R BB R
subsidiaries 10,109 -
Impairment losses recognised in the year FNER ZBEEE (42,000) (140,801)
Balance at end of year FAREHE (202,118) (170,227)
Carrying amount at the end of year FARERHEE - 42,000
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated P2 BREE (IR RERE) OB E T 53R
impairment) was allocated to cash generating units as SEEENM
follows:

Stem cell technology business operations kR ES - 42,000

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. BHE @)
Funeral and related businesses operations BERERER
In last year, impairment of goodwill of approximately E—FE  BERMELS,888,000FTER-E
HK$8,888,000 was recognised upon the classification of —=F+ATHALENBRARTK B S
assets and liabilities of subsidiaries as held for sale before BEWBARZEERBERBERAIFERE -
the date of completion of disposal of subsidiaries on 15
October 2013.
159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited BIBLBEEE (FB)ERAARIEM
and its subsidiaries (“159 Group”) BAR([1595%H])
For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test, the EEFEFRENSTNS  BeELEA YA
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is WeeBhikEREEFEET  MEAEER
determined based on value-in-use calculation which uses FTEEARBRCERE AL A FRYKREE
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved st zHenEtEl - BARAFHZEER
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows SRIEA TG E L R - EREAGHB
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the REEABUMEEEF 2 RETFIERE -

estimated rates stated below. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the cash-generating unit operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations: TEGRABERAZ EERE

Cash-generating unit Gross margin Growth rate Discount rate
ReELEN EFI= BR= BRR =

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

—E2-hF —TWF ZB-HF —TNF ZB-HF —T-MNOF
% % % % % %

Stem cell technology — # 4R 51 2 7%

business operations 72 69 10 40 17.3 19.6
1 22 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. FESm)

159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited
and its subsidiaries (“159 Group”) (continued)
According to the result of review of the calculation, the
management determined that impairment loss of
approximately HK$42,000,000 (2014: HK$127,830,000) was
recognised because the recoverable amount with reference
to the value in use calculation was estimated to be less than
the carrying amount. It was mainly due to the number of
customers recorded in the current and prior periods had not
reached the expected target projection.

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The growth rates used are consistent with the
forecasts in industry trends. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments. The downward adjustment of the pre-tax
discount rate was due to the update of the latest market
data in arriving at the appropriate discount rate.

Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui Bio-Technology Limited
(“Sheng Li”)

In last year, goodwill in the approximately amount of
HK$4,083,000 was recognised upon the acquisition of Sheng
Li. Details of acquisition are set out in note 34. For the
purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test, the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was
determined based on value-in-use calculation which used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using the
estimated rates stated below. The growth rate did not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the cash-generating unit operates.

19BLEBELEE(FE)BRAARERN
BT (1595E ) (&)
REFERFZEMER  SEEBETHERNE
& 18 #942,000,000% L( = T — M F:
127,830,000 70) * RA ALK EFAEERS
Hz e BT OREEE - LT EEH
RIBE K BEBEMREREE AR AR ZRTE
HAEZ7808 -

EEERBBERAREAMGRR 2ANE
EREENEX - AR RETATEBS AR —
B PTAIRAIR R AT R AIA - A R BRAERE D
B2RERR - BRRARXZATRAREIIH
RERBIATISEBAERSEAIRE -

RYBHEEYBEERIF(HEDD)

R E—FE  RE#I4,0830008 T2 EERIK
BN RER o BB ESL - AEE
FERENRNS  REELFL2AKREE
BOREBEEREERE  URBEREEEH
EZBFHVBIRERER RS RE < Bk
FEMZIREIRERNRA TIIE L = A
EREX T SBBRCELRUMEEEBZE
HSPag g Rk -

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL (continued)
Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui Bio-Technology Limited
(“Sheng Li”) (continued)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

Gross margin

20.

[k € ),
REYBHEEYRBEERIT RN
(#)

HEGREERBIIERE

Growth rate Discount rate

EFE BRE BR=E
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Cash-generating unit “E-Rf —Z-NF Z—EB-HE ~—T-NF —E-IF —T-MNF
BEE4ESN % % % % % %
Stem cell technology business — S4RE KT 75 N/A 78 N/A 5 N/A 19.6
TEA TEA TEA
According to the result of review of the calculation, the BIBHAEFEEHER  BEEERATHRRE
management determined that impairment loss of E51E 494,083,000 0 REAKL2EFEHE
approximately HK$4,083,000 was recognised, because the BERLZAkESEE P RRAEE -
recoverable amount with reference to the value in use was
estimated to be less than the carrying amount.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based ERERBATRBAREHMSERE CTEHE
on past performance and its expectation for market FREEMNE - FrAMREEITEBHEN—
development. The growth rates used are consistent with the B PTABRER KW MAt AR - W RARAER
forecasts in industry trends. The discount rates used are 2 EERRE
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.
21. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. BRIRBARZ’E

The Company
AT

2015 2014
= —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI » IRAKAS 273,439 273,439
Provision for impairment losses WIEE R (224,100) (220,000)
49,339 53,439

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of
the reporting period, which materially affected the Group's
results or net assets, are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22, OHEERE
The Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E—FF —Z—Ju4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR FHT
Unlisted equity investment in Spain, REAYEST 2 JE ETIRARE -
at cost (Note) R (FfaE) 2,509 2,509
Note: The unlisted available-for-sale investment is stated at cost less any Wi . ARABATEGHHEEA  EERAAFEL AR
accumulated impairment because the range of reasonable fair value LTSI E 0 MR E T AT S E I B IR AT 2
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that the SHREYE o

fair value cannot be measured reliably.

23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
The Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E—RF —T—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Materials and consumables JREH B 83 184
Finished goods Sk 7 10,979
90 11,163

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
F {2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES FE U B B8 2 R TR IE
The Company
PN
2015 2014
—Z-AfF —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG S 335,641 356,702
Accumulated impairment losses: REHRERE :

Beginning balance FEEER (139,433) (73,219)
Provided during the year B (65,655) (67,627)
Written off Hii1 58 50,595 -
Reversal £ [ol 12,027 1,413
Ending balance FRES (142,466) (139,433)
Carrying amounts AREE 193,175 217,269

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and
repayable on demand. Except for amount due from two
subsidiaries (2014: one subsidiary) bearing interest at the
annual rate of 12% (2014: 10.5%), all amounts due from
subsidiaries are interest-free.

FE UGB B8 1 B SRR R IR IR M R IR ESRIBIE o
BRIRFNE12E(ZE—ME - 105E)FRZ
JEU M fEIP B A Rl (— T — 4 : —fHEA
BNFIASN - PREEMIMBARFIR RE R

1 2 6 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. FEURBRF R H b EURFIE
The Group The Company
REE b /NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-IfF —FmE =t —F-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FHET FET
Trade receivables (Note a) FEUER X (Kizta) 20,507 1,071 - -
Deposit and prepayments e REMNZIE 7,559 10,094 295 317
Loan receivables (Note b) MM E TR (HizED) 111,481 120,088 14,853 25,000
Other receivables H o el 8 280 22,342 427 384
139,827 153,595 15,575 25,701
Note: e
(@) Trade receivables (a) FEWBR TR

An analysis of trade receivables by age, presented based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

REBAM2S 2 BERFRROMANT :

The Group The Company
AEM AR

2015 2014 2015

—E-FHF —ZT—OEF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET BT
0-30 days 0Z30H 20,076 1,030 - -
31-60 days 31E60H 92 21 - -
Over 60 days 60 HBA £ 339 20 - -
20,507 1,071 - =

The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging from cash on
delivery to 90 days.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The management of the Group monitors the recoverable amount of
the trade debts and considers adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amount, if necessary. In determining the recoverability
of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up
to the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, there are no trade receivables past
due and not impaired.

FEBRTEEFPZEERN FRHERKEI R -

YRR ET B - AERBBEB UL S B A EE
bkl

AEEEREERELEE TRESE  HRER
B EEH AT ME S BEHRR LB - B
W AR EAL RS AR E S8 A E
W B RERE BRI RN ERERE TR
EAED -

REE R - B B BRI (E 2 FEURRSK -

EREGNERIMEBERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. PN ARFR B H 4th FE WKL RO ()

Note: (Continued) Bfat - (&)

(b) Loan receivables (b) W ER
An analysis of loan receivables by age, presented based on the REHFAE 27 2 B ERERROTAOT -
contractual due date, is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEE P NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-0F —F-mEF —®-1F TP
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FAT
Neither past due R B gk (E
nor impaired 94,628 120,888 - 25,000
Past due but not impaired B s EERRE
— 1 to 3 months —1Z318A8 2,000 = - =
— Over 3 months to —HiA3EAZE
6 months 61fEA 14,853 - 14,853 -
111,481 120,088 14,853 25,000
All'loan receivables, which were past due but not impaired, have been FA B EME KRR E 2 B E SRR & Bie B R HE
fully settled subsequent to the reporting period. (b
As at 31 March 2015, loan receivables bore interest at the fixed rates RIZ—AFE=ZA=+—8  BRRERKEETENX
of 12% to 24% (2014: 12% to 24%) per annum and are repayable REZELE(ZZT—NF : 2EBF24E) T ERER
within 12 months. Except for a loan receivable with a carrying amount 12{E A REE - Br— I ZIE T IR BRI E 4
of approximately HK$27,390,000 (2013: HK$22,088,000) was secured /527,390,000 7T ( —ZF — =4 : 22,088,000/ 7T) 2
by parcels of lands, all loan receivables were unsecured. The directors BWERIN - TERKERAEER - EFTR2E
assessed the collectability of loans receivables from time to time BRAZBTERCHELIEREERR - BREKRER
individually with reference to borrowers’ past collection history and A AU BT TE BT

current creditworthiness.
26. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 26. BFIEEERE

The Group and the Company
AEEREAT

Equity investment listed in Hong Kong, REBEMZRBAEZE -
at fair value (Note) ANFE(KE) 38,245 69,588
Notes: The fair values of listed investments are determined on the basis of Bifat . EWREZ AT ETDIRRERRABTEEE

quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. BERBITERR
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group Be RRITERBIEAEEFFERS LR
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of HA=EA AR 2B ERRITIFR o

three months or less.

1 2 8 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

28. AMOUNT DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES 28. BB ARFRE
The amount due to subsidiaries is unsecured, interest-free JERIHE A RIFIEARER - 28 REIREKR
and repayable on demand. B -
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. ENERFRRHEMENSKIE
The Group The Company
by 3 | NG|
2015 2015 2014
—E-hF —E-HF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FTHET FHET
Trade payables FE S BRFR 68 347 - -
Other payables and accruals H A & 1 5RB &
fEZTE A 20,422 33,140 2,821 866
Amounts due to minority FERTH B AR
shareholders of subsidiary DERRE 2 IR
(Note) (i) 30,000 30,000 - =
Amount due to a director of OIS
subsidiary (Note) EEHE
(Hfiz) 125 250 - =
50,615 63,737 2,821 866
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is REETERZFHEESHAE1208 -
120 days.
The analysis of trade payables by age based on the invoice REBHMHZI 2 BARFERSTOT

date is as follows:

The Group The Company
REH PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-EE —T-mE —E-Ef e Sl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx THET TET FHET
0-30 days 0E30H 18 26 - -
31-60 days 31E60H - 2 - -
Over 60 days 60HLAE 50 319 - -
68 347 - -
Note: The amounts due to minority shareholders, and a director of Mfat : EAMEARSBRRRESZ FBERAREMN - 28
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of RSB R o
repayment.
BERLEGNBEMEEERAT 1 29
F#2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EERIE
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE

Unused tax

losses

RBABARR
HK$'000
BT

At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FMmA—H 9,418
Net change BE)FE 9,355
Eliminated on disposal of assets HEREHEEAERBEREHE
and liabilities held for sale (5,227)
Utilised E8A (852)
At 31 March 2014 and at 1 April 2014 R-Z—ME=A=+—8EF
—ET—FEMA—H 12,694
Net change BB FEE 8,056
utilised EBA (836)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RFE=RA=+—AH 19,914
No deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of the 7 i B A BRI 2 oK 2 A SRR A 1R &S 18
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit HWRBELERIEEE °
streams.
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE

Accelerated tax
depreciation

HOERBIR T

HK$'000
T

At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FMmA—H 89

Net change )R 86

At 31 March 2014 and at 1 April 2014 RZZE—WF=A=+—H

MZZ—MEMA—H 175

Net change BE)FEE (56)

At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RFE=RA=+—H 119
No deferred tax liability has been recognized due to the WREGESHRNAI RGERENERATERZ
temporary differences which will result in a liability to be EiF R mMERELETHIEAE -

payable in the foreseeable future are immaterial.

1 3 O HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30. EFEREA (@)

EEREEE (#)
BERRCEFRERE AT N\FE—H—
B - ch BB A F AT R AR SRR B A
SANTEINT o p HO 7S 5 B ] 2 1) [ B B
ZEER - BEE RN R R T R -
i I 4 ot e B B 2 BT BB ER R U A 2 TR
EEPNGA P RERAE LRI R -

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B®&

Number
of shares Amount
BAEE k]
§000] HK$'000
TFh% THIT

Authorised (ordinary shares of ETE (BAREEO0.04 7T
HK$0.04 each) ZEBR)

At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and 2015

R=ZZE—=FWA—H
—ENFER_FT—RHF

=A=+—H 5,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (ordinary shares of EETRAE (BREE
HK$0.04 each): 0.0478 702 LimA%) -
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=F1lAH—H 3,291,953 131,678
Issue of new shares under share placing RIRAR D BE & 21 THAR 1D
(note a) (Ktata) 658,380 26,335
At 31 March 2014, at 1 April 2014 R—ZE—mF=A=+—H
and at 31 March 2015 RZZE—EOEMNA—B R
RZZE—RAF=A=+—H 3,950,333 158,013
Note: Htax
(a) On 29 August 2013, 658,380,000 shares of the Company were issued @ RZT—=FN\NAZ+IH 658380000 KA A

A% 17 LA 48 B 102,557,000 8 7L 8 17 T AR A - B
26,335,000 7L E &t ARRANR - M 0RR B S 1R 2 B
F#E76,222,000 B T RIE T AR ER

to placees at a total consideration of HK$102,557,000, of which
HK$26,335,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$76,222,000 was credited to share
premium account.

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME 32. MEReiEEtE

132

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
August 2010 and the Stock Exchange granting approval of
the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to be
issued under the Share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme B") on 17 November 2010, the Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme B to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 1 February 2002 (the “Share
Option Scheme A").

(@) Share Option Scheme A

The Company’s Share Option Scheme A was approved
on 1 February 2002 pursuant to a written resolution of
the Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to selected individuals
to subscribe for shares in the Company as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. The
Board may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or
part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any director of any member of
the Group and any advisor or consultant (in areas of
technical, financial or corporate managerial) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to take up options
to subscribe for the shares in the Company for a
consideration of HK$1 per each lot of share options
granted.

The Share Option Scheme A was terminated on 17
November 2010. No further options will be granted
thereunder, but the provisions of the Scheme will
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of the Options granted
prior to its termination or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the
Scheme. The option period shall not be less than 3
years and shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
acceptance of option. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an option
within 28 days from the date of grant.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

(@)

(b)

Share Option Scheme A (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme A
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue unless approval from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each individual
in any twelve-month period up to and including the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant unless approval from
Company'’s shareholders has been obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time during the
specified option period. The exercise price shall be
determined by the directors of the Company, and shall
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated on GEM'’s daily quotation
sheets on the date of grant; (i) the average closing
price of the Company's shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share Option Scheme B

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme B is to
enable the Company to provide incentive to
participants with the opportunity of participating in the
growth of the Company by acquiring shares in the
Company and may, in turn, assist in the attraction and
retention of talents who have made contributions to
the success of the Company.

Given that the Share Option Scheme A has expired on
14 January 2012, the Directors considered that it is in
the interest of the Company to adopt the Share Option
Scheme B in compliance with Chapter 23 of the GEM
Listing Rules to replace the old scheme.

The option period shall not be less than 3 years and
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of acceptance
of option. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. HK$1
is payable on acceptance of an option within 28 days
from the date of grant.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under both Share
Option Schemes involving the issue or grant of options
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in
issue from time to time.

32. HRBRHEETE ()

(@)

(b)

EREGNERIMEBERAT

BB AETT 8 (&)

IRIEFE B A et 8 FF Al X 2 BB IR A
EEMEBAF T FBEERTRNZ
10% * HEEEUS AR RIBERALEEBRIN o
REBEEEHAH(EFEZA) LEA+=
BAHEAREE ALREESELEZ
BRERTERDETRETETZR
R TERENEHARZE#ET
B3 1% » MBS AN 2 B BERHE AR B
o

BRI N E B IR R AR R 1T
TEEEAARRESET  XELAR
T =Fhz&R=RE  OVARARNOR
REAHBEAZEREABRERTI 2K
M{E () AR BN ERR L B A
hEAEXRAZFHRTE : R(NARF
AP EE

BRETTEZ
BREASCEESARBABTNARZHE
ERHEREBRBEBARARNOMOZ
AREZIEEMR  feMAEBRES| R
BREHARBZKINELERZAS -

ERBRETEFER T ——F— A
THRER BFRRERAZER LD
RAE 2B RMBAE B ZARRE
BRERT I A AR R RIFE ©

8 POME A ) e 3 A BB Pl v B A RE R TN B
PR=ZFRITEEETF BERTH
BAERITEAMAREZREHR - XH
BRI RN L BB E 28 A A1
BT e

R DS B 31T 3% H BB A 2 BB BX
AT BT h R B FITEZ B M ARTT
SRR IT R A e BIT 2R A
BRLRIABHBBARRTRHEHTR
1772.30% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 32. FRBRIERTE ()
Details of the share options granted by the Company are as RARREE 2 BREFBEOT
follows:

Closing share

price

Number of Exercise immediately

Share share options price Fairvalue  before the
Options  Date of grant Exercise period granted  pershares at grantdate date of grant

ROREE

Rl e RREEE  REAMA

BRE  RHAH fTERH %8 BRITEER ZAY¥E ZWmE
Hk$ HK$ Hk$

ST e S o
/BJL 87t 7BJT

A 26 April 2010 26 April 2010 to 25 April 2013 120,376,000 0.2670 0.0743 0.241
B “Z-TFNA=TH “Z-TFNA-TAEE 120,376,000 0.2670 0.0743 0.241
“E-=FfMA=+HA
B 18 November 2010 18 November 2010 to 173,000,000 0.1670 0.0466 0.153
17 November 2013
Z “2-ZF+—RA+/\B S AVAGES 173,000,000 0.1670 0.0466 0.153
“Z-=F+—-A+thA
C 3 January 2014 3 January 2014 to 90,000,000 0.4000 0.04315 0.290
2 January 2015
A “ZT-NF—-A=H “Z-F—R=RZ 90,000,000 0.4000 0.04315 0.290
—Z-15—-AZH
D 3 January 2014 3 January 2015 to 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
2 January 2016
T “ZT-NF—-A=H i e e ) 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
S
The fair value of the share options granted of HK$4,487,000 R LA AE 2 A F{E 4,487,000 8 T E R FER
was recognized as share option expense during the year. R BB RAER X (ZF — M4 : 2,539,000
(2014: HK$2,539,000). L) °
1 34 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into account the

32. MEBR#EEtEl(#w)
FERE AR TR E 2 BRE R T ENE
HEHA - ER AR ESR A - ghEE
B B IE  ER R E - ZER BB A

terms and conditions upon which the share options were HIBRAT -

granted. The significant inputs into the Model were as

follows:
Scheme A B (o D
& A Z 7] T
Share Price (HK$) as REFL A2

at the date of grant f& & (&c) 0.241 0.153 0.290 0.290

Exercise Price (HK$) TEE (BTT) 0.276 0.167 0.400 0.400
Expected volatility TEHAK 18 103.56% 94.013% 65.859% 63.606%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ i 1| 2= 1.255% 0.716% 0.205% 0.333%
Life of option B I 4 4 1D 3 years 4 3years 1 years < 1 years

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other feature
of the share options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

Details of the Company's share options outstanding under
share option scheme during the year are as follows:

T8 HA R 1R = BR B S OR IR D TROB R R B E 2 1R
R EZBAT—ERERER - MERHER
Y EmEAMSE T AR FEZFES

FRRRBRIEBRERT BITR T W R TT (78 A
ZFEBS

Number of
share options Number of
outstanding Cancelled/ share options
Share at the Granted Exercised  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
options Exercise  beginning of during during during during at the end
scheme Date of grant price the year the year the year the year theyear  of the year
EPEATE ERE/ EREATE
BRES RLAH ke ZBREHE FRBM ERR 1 FRXM  ZBREZA
HK$
BT
2015
—E-1%
Consultants © 3 January 2014 0.4 90,000,000 - - - (90,000,000) -
i ] —T-mE-A=A
Consultants D 3 January 2014 0.4 90,000,000 - - - - 90,000,000
i T “Z-m¥-A=A
180,000,000 - - - (90,000,000 90,000,000

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

Number of

Share options

outstanding

Share atthe
options Exercise heginning of
scheme Date of grant price the year

Gl TR
HKS

S
BIT

32. MEBR#EEtEl(#w)

Number of

Cancelled/ Share options

Granted Exercised terminated Lapsed outstanding

during during during during atthe end
the year the year the year the year

R %

2014
IE
Consultants A 26 April 2010 0276 120,376,000 - - - (120,376,000) -
i 5 ZZ-TFMA=T/A
Consultants B 18 November 2010 0.167 173,000,000 - - - (173,000,000) -
B Z -5+ ATN\A
Consultants C 3 January 2014 0400 - 90,000,000 - - - 90,000,000
B [ —2-M5-A=H
Consultants D 3 January 2014 0400 - 90,000,000 - - 90,000,000
B T —2-M5-A=H

293,376,000 180,000,000 - - (293,376,000 180,000,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
90,000,000 (2014: 180,000,000) share options outstanding
under the schemes, which represented approximately 2.28%
(2014: 4.56%) of the Company'’s ordinary shares in issue as

REREHER - ARA AR E]A 90,000,000
(=—Z—PO4E : 180,000,000 17 ) i ARTTIE 2 B PR
B HEERARRNRZADETEBRL2.28%
(ZZ—UF : 456%) °

at that date.
1 3 6 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b 3 WA 55 4 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  33. EBKBHEATKBIERSE

THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 October 2013, the Company, entered into the
agreements with an independent third party to acquire
100% of equity interests in Gold Arch Group Limited (“Gold
Arch”) at the total consideration of HK$62,000,000. Gold
Arch holds only exclusive licences on 5 patents granted by
the holders and has not yet commenced any operations
prior to the acquisition. The directors therefore considered
that Gold Arch did not meet the definition of a business in
HKFRS 3 (revised) at the acquisition date. Accordingly, the
acquisition had been accounted for as an asset acquisition.

Details of acquisition are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 28 March 2013.

Details of the assets and liabilities acquired were as follows:

RZE—=ZFFTAZ+tNIRA ARFREBIE
= TTRTSL WA - PAIR 48 A {E 62,000,00078 TT UL
BRPEEARAR(SM]) 2R A%ER -
SPESARAARBZABRENZ EF R
R AR EEAN HRRABERES -
It EERA RRBAE  SPXTHEE
AR EERFIR(RET AEBIERE °
Hith - WREEHREFEREEWBAK -

WEFREZHBHNARRBRR - T —=%F
ZAZTNRZAM -

ERBREERBEFBWT

HK$ 000
T

Intangible assets EmREE 13,341
Accrued charges and other payable R E R R E M EFRIE (13,3417)
Net assets acquired BB EEFE -
Total consideration satisfied by cash NBE SNz BRE 62,000
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and HUENBRARIZRE R

cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of RESEYRLFREIN -

a subsidiary was as follows:
Purchase consideration settled in cash LIRS #E 2 BERE 62,000
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Re kIR EFEYRL T 62,000

At the date of completion of acquisition, the Company
carried out assessment for the carrying amounts of the
exclusive licences on the 5 patents and determined that
future economic benefit would be generated from the use
of 3 patents while the other 2 patents revealed no future
economic benefit. As a result, the exclusive licences on 3
patents were recognised as intangible assets and their
details are set out in note 19.

RUBZER B - RRBHABEEH 2 FH[E
TRARAEE T AL EERKEENmfH =
HENZERPEL  MEMRESEMNIEE
HERFEEME - Bty - ZIHEMZ BRI R
RRBEVEEMNABHBHNHE9 -

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION 34. EBESH

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_ZF—WFE=A=+—HLEE

On 6 December 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity RZE—Z=ZF+_FAH AEBUEKEA
interests of Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui Bio-Technology Limited % 3,500,000 7t (8 & 72 4,455,000 7% 7T ) W 8
ORINEE = EYMBHE AR A F]) (“Sheng Li"), a company —MRAPEFMA TR ERENEERER
incorporated in the PRC and engaged in the provision of RS ARIFIBE DS EMBEBRAR (8
anti-aging and beauty services, at a total consideration of N2 2R - WSS A& N 1ER
RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to HK$4,455,000). The acquisition AREERERBETES 2T A o

was made with the aim to utilise Sheng Li as a platform to
extend the stem cells technology business of the Group.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEERH BRI 2 EREEREBE
Sheng Li acquired as at the date of acquisition were as NEEWNT -
follows:

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before
business Fair value
combination adjustment Fair value

EXEOAT

W iE s %
ZIREE NP ERE A¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT THET

Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - BB L& E 755 103 858
Inventories FE 37 - 37
Trade and other receivables JE Uit B X N EL A JE Uk TR 462 (37) 425
Cash and bank balance e RIBITEEH 350 - 350
Trade and other payables JE 1< BIR R e Bt JE £<F 038 (1,151) (147) (1,298)
453 (81) 372
Goodwill S 4,083
4,455

Satisfied by: ATRE AT -

Cash B 4,455
Total consideration transferred — pri&z (B L% 4,455
Net cash outflow arising on WEEHEEL 2SR

acquisition: HER

Cash consideration paid 2R ERE (4,455)

Cash and cash equivalents BERERENREEED

acquired 350
(4,105)
1 3 8 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

34.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Sheng Li is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the Group’s
medical beauty operation in the PRC and the anticipated
future operating synergies from the combination.

Sheng Li totally contributed approximately HK$550,000 and
HK$1,806,000 to the Group’s turnover and loss for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2013, the
Group's turnover for the year would have been
approximately HK$4,256,000, and loss for the year would
have been approximately HK$530,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April
2013, nor is intended to be projection of future results.

34.

L £ 28 3¢ )
WERENELEZEHENRAEERNTEZEE
EREBHEBMANER R A HEE ZTRHRE
EEHRERMESL -

RUEE B IE R E BRI HE - BOBRRER
SEEXERFEEED R4 & 550,000 T
% 1,806,000 7T

MU B EIEN —E—=FmMA — AR KE
B AR F[EEEBEBL A4,256,0008 T+ A
F [ E18 15 495 530,000 08 7T o BEERHEE
HEBR YA —TFEERTMHKBEER-Z
—=—FNA—HBERAEE EREEBERL
BELE - NN ERRAERIRELE 2 TR -

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

35.

140

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
For the year ended 31 March 2015

As the Company’s subsidiaries (“Target Group”), which are
engaged in stem cells technology business acquired on 18
September 2012, were unable to achieve the remaining
performance as required pursuant to the conditional sale
and purchase agreement dated 4 September 2012 and
supplemental deed dated 6 September 2012
("Agreements”), the Company has received confirmation
from the vendor of the Target Group dated 15 March 2015
to confirm that the Company is discharged from the
remaining payment obligations under contingent
consideration arrangement in connection with the
acquisition of Target Group. Details of the discharge of the
payment obligations are set out in the Company's voluntary
announcement dated 1 April 2015. As a result, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$31,167,000 relating to the acquisition of
the Target Group was derecognised during the year ended
31 March 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2014

As at 31 March 2014, the management of the Company re-
assessed the probability of fulfilling the performance
requirements. The management of the Company
determined that the Target Group was unable to achieve the
expected EBITDA under the Guaranteed Periods with
respect to performance requirements as set out in the
Agreements. As a result, the fair value of contingent
consideration payable was reduced by approximately
HK$21,193,000.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

35. EMRARE

BE-Z-—HF=A=+—HLEE
MR AKEZHBAR(TBEREEER] R-F
—ZFNATNABRKE - (ERARRITE
B EEFEBREARA T ——FNLANA
ZHEBHEERELBMR T —F AR
BewaRE(HE])FMREZHRTEITR
B ARBCREERERZEHHLEAHA
—E-RAF=-ATHBAZHERE  BRAEARF
REERIEEE 2 HARELRFRTHR TR
BEECERR - BEABRBRNREEZHBRAR
ARABABMA_Z-—RAFNA—BAZERER
fio o EIE > WE R RSB Z ENEAREZK
H{EX)31,167,000 8 TERBE_T—HF=
A=1T—BLLFEBURMR °

BE-E-—NE=A=+—HLEE
R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—0 ARFEEEE
BT RBEREZAIRENE - RAREEE
WEEREEEARBEAHEITRRATE
BURFEH 2 TEAREBITDA  FH it - T SHAR(E
ZAHER D #21,193,0008 7T °
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36. DISPOSAL OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD  36.

FOR SALE

On 15 October 2013, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in two subsidiaries, namely Qinghai Fuli
Fenghuangshan Cemetery Company Limited and Taiyuan
City Wufuling Company Limited, at a total consideration of
HK$33,000,000. Details of disposal of subsidiaries are set out
in the Company’s circular dated 17 September 2013. The
state of affairs of these subsidiaries were classified as
assets and liabilities held for sale on 30 September 2013 and
the details were set out in the interim results announcement
dated 13 November 2013. An analysis of the financial effects
arising on the disposal is as follows:

Fenghuangshan

HERFHRERERAR

RZE—=F+A+HE AEENEKRE
33,000,000 T HEMAEME A A - BIE 818
FMBERLAEROEREETARRARMERE
ERHERARZ2EHRAER - BEALEN
BRARZHBHNRARABHA=EZE—=FAN
AtTtBZ@EE - ZEWEBR A2 EHMRIR
TR =FNA-THESEARBEERBE M
BHEFBERRNERR - Z—=FT—HAT=H
ZHEIEENG WEELEZMBEESTTN
™

Qinghai Fuli
Taiyuan City
Wufuling
Company
Limited

Cemetery
Company
Limited

ERENREL
AERG
AREEAR
HK$'000
THET

ARHHEE
BRBERA A
HK$'000
FAET

Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KR 29,391 24,644 54,035
Available-for-sale investment A HERE - 947 947
Inventories & 7,620 39,667 47,287
Trade and other receivables JRE U B 2 K L b E U5k 0B 26,802 69,627 96,429
Cash and bank balances R e RiRITHER 2,112 121 2,233
Trade and other payables FETBR 2% I EL b FE AT 2R08 (49,172) (83,779) (132,951)
16,753 51,227 67,980
Non-controlling interest FEFERR RS (8,041) (25,102) (33,143)
Release of translation reserve upon HERBAREER
disposal of subsidiaries BE S (2,760) (4,092) (6,852)
Gain on disposal & 2 Wi 2,512 2,503 5,015
Total consideration, satisfied by: BRE  UTIHAIA
Cash He 3,000
Promissory note A EE 30,000
Total consideration BRE 33,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELZRSRAEE
Cash consideration received BlizReR(E 33,000
Cash and cash equivalent disposed HEZHERBEEZEY (2,233)
30,767

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year were engaged
in funeral and related businesses and had contributed
turnover of approximately HK$26,896,000 and loss of
approximately HK$52,121,000 to the Group up to the date of
disposal.

RAFEANEZWB AR EREZENIERERE
%o BEHEBRHL  BASEEREERBEY
26,896,0007%8 7t & fE51849 52,121,000 % 7T ©

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

37. COMMITMENT 37. i
(i) Operating lease commitment (i)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment payable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

REHEERE
RBERR  ARBERBETAHELE
HERBEEMREN ZAEWT

The Group The Company
rEE EAHE

2015 2015 2014

—E-Rf —E—mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT THET THT

Within one year —FR 17,110 8,876 - -
Inthe second to fifth year, E£-_ZF x4

inclusive (BHEEEME) 28,650 4,580 - -

45,760 13,456 - =

Note: Included in operating lease commitments within one year of
HK$9,090,000 and in the second to fifth year of HK$25,755,000
are lease commitments related to lease of property by a
Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary (“Subsidiary”)
which has been disposed of subsequent to the reporting
period. Details of disposal of the Subsidiary are set out in note
44,

(ii) Capital commitments (ii)
The Group

)
2015

—E-HF
HK$'000
FTHET

Kzt : EFA—FR9,090,00E T RE_EERF
25,755,000 8 7T 2 #8478 & AR /5 B B ]
E2EMBAR(MEARDEE—HEYE
BRCHERE  FRENBARENHRES
BHE o HEMB AR ZFEHNHI A

BARERE

The Company
RAF
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—mE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THAT TER TAEX

Capital commitments for WM - KR
the acquisition of property, K22

plant and equipment BAEYE
— properties (note a) — W (ffita) 12,726 12,710 - -
— construction —EEIR
in progress and Rt
furnitures (note b) (KizEb) 1,088 - - =
13,814 12,710 - _
Notes: Bz

(a) On 27 May 2013, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into the acquisition agreement with vendor
(an independent third party) to acquire properties located in
the PRC at a consideration of RMB33,600,000. A refundable
deposit of RMB23,520,000 (2015: approximately HK$29,694,000
and 2014: approximately HK$29,658,000) was paid and balance
of RMB10,080,000 (2015: approximately HK$12,726,000 and
2014: approximately HK$12,710,000) will be settled upon the
fulfillment of certain conditions as set out in the acquisition
agreement.

(b) Capital commitments for the acquisition of construction in
progress and furnitures are related to a Company'’s indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary (“Subsidiary”) which has been
disposed of subsequent to the reporting period. Details of
disposal of the Subsidiary are set out in note 44.

EWNBAREREN (RBULE=T7) L WE
ek - LA fE A K ¥ 33,600,000 7T 4 B
Y o AR BRI € AR 23,520,000 7T (=&
— R : 429,694,000 T Kk —E—MEF : 4
296580008 /L) B X I MEprE AR
10,080,000 7T ( =% — R F : #912,726,000%
TR TN : £912,710,0007 7T ) # 7 UL
B ATEE T IRIHERREN -

(0) W AR IR B MR M2 B A SR A A R
2 EAMBAR(HBAR]) B - ZME
RABRMEBMRIE - HEMBLRRFRE
ESIE T

1 42 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
and its employees are each required to make monthly
contributions at 5% of relevant payroll costs or HK$1,500
(2014: HK$1,250), whichever is the lower, to the scheme.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the total
contributions made by the Group to the retirement benefit
schemes and charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss amounted to HK$672,000 (2014: HK$1,005,000).

As at 31 March 2015, there were no forfeited contributions
available for the Group to offset contributions payable in
future years (2014: (Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R FaEFIEHE

AEERMAEBTEBAEREEZIRHIERTE
2 ([RER DS - LB ZEEVERALE
ZEEDHRFE  UFERRHFEAE &
TR AEERRESEEEAREETE 5%
51,5008 70 (ZZF — 04 : 1,250 70) (A
EERE) AT EIEL R - AREH AR
et e 2 BAEERBIET ISR TR -

FTEBPPEARLMBNBAR 2 EESTIA
BB E S 2 BRE IR RGN 8 2K
8 - WEMEARARE 2 FELHIRZER
RAENEH I HRIA B BRI - NEE BB R
RENE B 2 AR ETRNTERR -

HE-Z-—AF=A=t+—RHILFE &&£H
)R PR AR T 5T E1/E 30 A 49 672,000 7T
(ZZ—PU4 : 1,005,000 7T) * WERLEAE
PR ©

MREZZ-—RF=ZA=+—B AEETEAE
HAKRFEERMNHK 2 ERBHK(ZF—N
T
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. M¥IA

The Group’s major financial instruments include available- AEBEZIZUBTABEIIHHEERE -5
for-sale investments, held-for-trading investments, bank EEERE « RITHEH - BIERR R EMAEK
balances, trade and other receivables, trade and other FRIE -~ AT BR SR R E At B 5 IR DA R AN 3 A
payables and contingent consideration payable. Details of RE - ZEWBETAZHBRESN TS - &
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective ZEMFTEBR 2 B RAABREZERRE
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments ZBEREINWNT  EREERRERZSAR
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out VARECR B A8 R BREUE & 18 76 ©

below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Categories of financial instruments (@) HMBETEER

2014
—Z—&F

HK$'000
THETT

Financial assets B EE
Available-for-sale investments A EHEIRE 2,509 2,509
Loan and receivables B &R GIE
— Trade and other receivables — FEURBR N N B Ath fE U FR 0B 137,975 148,616
— Cash and bank balances — R& RIRTTHERR 12,099 47,718
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 38,245 69,588
190,828 268,431
Financial liabilities MEAasE
Amortised cost HSHA AR
— Trade and other payables — BRI E A FE T FRIR 40,241 42,194
Contingent consideration payable BT ARE - 31,167
40,241 73,361
1 44 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Market risk

(b)

)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions and recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the Group's functional currency. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group’s had business
activities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group’s business activities are primarily exposed
to foreign exchange risk in respect of Renminbi
("RMB") against Hong Kong Dollar. The net
assets/liabilities of certain investments of the
Group in the PRC are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

39. MBEITR @)

(b)

@

™5 B B

SN LB

SNE RIS AR R R R 5 R E R
BEMBENAREBEIGEE R SN
BRHEREL - REBBLENUIN
BEHE 2 EBAZINERR - K&
EEHBEIE2mAEARBETAR
BDABTERZIINERR - A%
ERTERIRECEE/BEF
BAASINERERR - ERER
BERINERR - LHNETER
EREPINE R o

EHR - AEBEINEEHEZ
BEXEENRERABREED

Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —T—OF —E-1F —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FHET FET
Renminbi AR 23,322 42,853 4,206 6,929
BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(b)

)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in

—AF=A=1T—HIFE

39. MBEIR @)
™% b (&)

(b)

@

57l‘%ﬂffﬁ(f*)

WZ&*/#}C ,;/XU/
KﬁgixE;TAEﬁgiﬁmﬁﬁXZ
TE o MRV AEEEHARARI
BEEISE R H A RBHERIZES%
ZERE 5% RBAETEEEREAE

N EB IR INE [ B R P A U E L
E - RMEBEYIEXRAELE 2
SIRE P - URESTE
FERARLGBZINEFHEERIER -
WiZINEE R 2 S @ BN F 4R
ARBBBRE - LN ESFERWA
EE 2 e EBHAREAES
BIREFEEEEGIEM - MAEE
e EBH ARERES% - AlY
EBEEREMMARZTE  UTHE
ERINERREE -

loss for the year where the functional currencies
of the Group strengthen 5% against Renminbi.
For a 5% weakening of the functional currencies
of the Group against the Renminbi, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss,
and the balances below would be negative.

Effect on loss of the year end
and accumulated losses
HEGABERR ARG EBRZTE

Effect on equity
HRA 28
2015

—E-RE
HK$'000
THET

2015
—E-RF
HK$'000
THET

2014
—T—mF
HK$'000
FET

2014
—T—OF
HK$'000
FHT

Renminbi AR 1,006 1,796 1,006 1,796

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group'’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances. The management
considers the Group's exposure of bank
balances to cash flow interest rate risk is not
significant as they have short maturity period.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of variable-rate bank balances at the
end of the reporting period was the amount
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variable were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2015 would decrease/increase by HK$52,000
(decrease/increase by 2014: HK$186,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on its variable rate
bank balance.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investments and
held-for-trading investments. The Group's price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
listed in Hong Kong. The management monitors
the price risk and will take appropriate actions
when necessary.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2015, if the quoted market price
of equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as held-for-trading investments had been
increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$1,912,000 as a result of change
in fair value of held-for-trading investments.
(2014 HK$3,479,000).

e

39. MBEITR @)
% EE ()

(b)

EREGNERIMEBERAT

(i)

(iii)

F=ER
K‘E@fﬁ‘i\miﬂwﬂﬁﬁigéﬁiﬁ

AR - BEERR/NEE
ﬁﬂﬂééﬁﬁikxzfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂ&&
il REREBESRENERR
FHY

T a3 SRR 2T

AT BREE ST TR R R & B R
A ZREREN XA MRS
ZAMBRNMERR2F BIRTT
BHEREFRAREESHEMRE

W& FIE EF TRES0EERM
ﬁﬁﬁﬁmm%ziﬁ%ﬂﬁ REEEE

—RAF=ZA=+—RHILFE
2%%%%9/%mwmm%ﬁ
(ZZ—m4F : {1 101186,000
BIL) FERRNAKEERTE
RITHEBAS B RENXRER -

AR
AEERE S B AT RHERAR
FEBERE 2 AR SR EBA
BEAR - AEEEERRTEE
RRES RS - EBES
SERAR - THREBEE RN
BETH -

BRAAEE SR SB 2T
AT SURE AT Th AR $R & B R
AR R A ER R MRS

R-ZZ—AF=ZA=+—8 " ik
BEEEZREDENES TR
AN 38 5 B R T (B AL 0, 4 5% i
FTEEMES®ETE  AEEF
ERTHEEEERBEEEZRE
NFEZH MWD, D
1,912,000% 7t( = & — W ¢
3,479,000 7T ) °

147

F {2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

148

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties, is the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group's exposure to credit risk on trade and other
receivables is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather than industry
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had concentration of credit risk as over 96%
(2014: over 83%) of the total trade receivables was
due from 5 (2014: 1) largest customers which had no
history of default. The Group has policies in place for
the control and monitoring of such credit risk.

The Group also exposes to credit risk on loan
receivables. The Group has internal control
procedures for the identification of the credit
worthiness of borrowers, evaluation of the loan
approval and request for collateral against loan
receivables, if necessary. In addition management
reviews the recoverable amount of loan receivables
individually at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, management
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of borrowers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because all
the Group’s bank deposits are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC with high credit
rating.

—AF=A=1T—HIFE

39. MBEIR @)

(c)

ERER
AXSUTARAGRENSSRMT
FRH AL BREEERARDRARA

BATEAOR R TS AE Eﬁﬁu TS EE
ZAREE -

PBNRS R M EUGRIAM S - A&
By EERRIZSRETP ZHE
ARE(MESRPEEMETR) M
2 AhEERBRABEFZEREE
RALBEBLERE P REANRRERE
e RBREHR AEEAREEED
Rl - REA/EKRER(—F—NF : —
#) WEARERLHREBREP ZHIAIG

FEWBE B EEFRIB96% (B — U4 : 1B
iB83%) - AEE BT ZE R E IR
”ﬁo

AEBENTAAZBRERZEERR -
ZIK‘EI B NRREE IR P ;%,%EHE.TA
f.:,\Hii/R FEEREHLLEER
25Kt e e B R U 1 4 um\’
M@JEEC%%&%HHXkﬁﬂﬁlﬂ%‘ﬂ&%%ﬂ
ZA W E R ARERBE N R M E 2 EE
{’Eﬁﬁﬂ)ﬂﬂééﬂé c UM E - EEE
RRAEEZ EZERRARRE - R
:.,\Hﬁﬁﬁ&y%%ﬁ}\ NS i
BEEERBAEEHE)

nBEeZEERRAR  REANSE
BAARITEFROFERNEERHEE
SEERNEZRRT
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure
that it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations.

The tables below analysis the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of each reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows

39. MBIR @)

(d)

REES @R

EERSECERE  NEBERLK
AehBReFEVESREEEBRR/R
RIKF - URAEEZERIEDS LR
BRERBNBZFE EEETHE
MET2ESHN  BRABREHUB
BRENEMBEL -

TRETAEEGRASRERNRESH
BIEA A 2 R e ERfE R AR RE 2 HIAE R B
DZUBEBEST  AERARBEZLHE
REHNABRRERE - TREFEN X
EARERERE

The Group rEEH
On demand Total Total carrying
or less than undiscounted amount at
3 months cash flow 31.3.2015
R=-Z2—HF
BRERD REFFRB L =A=+-—H
PR=MEA TEEG ZEREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH&xT
Trade and other payables  J& < BR 2k F2 E f FE 1~ 40,241 40,241 40,241
I8
Total @t 40,241 40,241 40,241

On demand
or less than
3 months

BER
SREM@A
HK$'000
FET

Total
undiscounted
cash flow

AR RE
ME
HK$'000

THET

Total carrying
amount at
31.3.2014

N T —F

=A=+—H

ZEREAAE
HK$'000
FHET

Trade and other payables JE 15} B 3R % EL b A5 42,194 42,194 42,194
FKRIB
Total A=t 42,194 42,194 42,194

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

150

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively; and

o The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the financial statements approximate their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

39. MBEIR @)

(e)

B TAZAFE
MBEERMBRAEZRFER MR

s  ABRERRRKHLEERMEE
BEZMBEENYBREZAFE
TIDRI2ERBRTHEABRER
BEE: &

e HpUBEERWKEBEZRF
B DIRAREBEXABEAE
EATMSERSER  ETHRRS
MEBDEE -

EEZRS RNUBHERERZMBEE
MM BAE REEREE A ERE -

TRIEHMSEATFERRETEZEH
BTESN  RBRATFEBERMEEE
DER—E=H:

FE-—MATHEAEDEHREESAE
RIBRT ISR CRAR) BIRE

E_RATEAEDIREE —RABE
WELASN - ATE R (BMER) sk (BB
ERITLE) BEEXREBEMSE AR
ERE R

FE=MAFEFETIRAF ALIFRE
ABERMSEHEBZEEXRBERAEE
EBRZBAE) ZHERMFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. MBEIR@#)
(e) Fair value of financial instruments (continued) (e) BMBIBEZAFEE)

The Group and the Company
AEBERAAT
2015 2014

—E-RF —Z—NF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E— E-H B F—M B B=

Equity securities listed &S Fiiz

in Hong Kong, RAER
at fair value N |
Held-for-trading REEBRE
investments 38,245 - - 69,588 = =
Contingent FER S ARE
consideration
payable - - - - - 31,167
The fair value of held-for-trading investments was BEBEREZ AP ETIOERTIS R
based on quoted bid prices in an active market. BB AEBKE -
Details of the valuation of the fair value of contingent FERASKARBAFLEZ GEFBERN
consideration payable were disclosed in note 35. 353K EE o
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in RREFEE  E—HRE_H2BEIE
both years. [

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z — &

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

41.

152

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and process during the years end
31 March 2015 and 2014.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total liabilities over total assets. The
Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
satisfactory level. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2015 was
17% (2014: 21%).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

—AF=A=1T—HIFE

40.

41.

HFEH

RNEBERERZ BRAREREBEE RS
BRAEZE 7801 - LARES RO AL
fth ) 2 48 B & 75 2R A 2 DA R B AR R AR AR B S0 1]
¥ o

AEBRBEHAARBEEEZ BRSEE
BRFABEARE - BEFHNABELRE
AEEFREREINTFRRZBESHE - Ak

%‘E@éﬁzﬁ ?é‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂxﬁiﬂj’iéﬁuﬂd &
B BE_T-—RAFR_FT-NF=ZA=1+—
HIEFE - Iﬁ;ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ BR MAZFF 1R
AEBEREERBELT (REBERAEEE

FTE)AEERER - REEB KRB AHERE
EBBRERNMEZKE - RZT—HF=H
—t+—HZEEABHERAE17%(ZZT—WF :
21%) °

BRABALXS
AREEEMERR(ERAREZHRBEA
DHEZERERZOREAKRERHEE - &
TERAMERE -

TEEBABZHME
FRN - BEFREMEZEBAEZHESMAT -

2015 2014

—E-RF —HE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FB SR

Short-term benefits R HAE R 3,979 3,866
Post-employment benefits BERE 12 1B 18 15
3,997 3,881

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b O WM HS SRR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES ~ 42. EEME A TN
R-E—REE=A=+—R ARAZ

TEHBAAFENT -

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the (a)
Company as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Proportion of nominal
Place of Issue and paid up value of issued capital
Name of incorporation/ Form of capital/registered registered capital held  Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
AL/ BEARBERE/ ARRFRERITRE/
ARER EXiy AEERFR Bl ZMRAEEED TTEY
Directly  Indirectly
E# f;
Royal Kit Trading Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
HEEZERAR Bk company L 10,0007% T REER
BREEAH
FIMEALRES  The People’s Limited liability HK$150,000,000 - 100%  Trading business
BRAT Republicof China ~ company 150,000,000/ 7T BH5%
hEAREHE BREEAH
Life Sciences and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Investment holding
Technologies Group &% company TER1EL REER
Limited ARAEAT]
EaRERTER
BRAF
LST Operating Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Distribution of
Bk company ZER1EL biomedical and
BRELAR life sciences
products
DIEENEDR
EnNEER
Gold Arch Group Limited British Virgin Islands — Limited liability Ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
AMEEERAR EERIEE company LAR1ET RAER
BRELAT
159 Regenerative British Virgin Islands  Limited liability Ordinary US$100 51% - Investment holding
Medicine Group RBRAHE company LRRI100ET RAER
(HK) Limited BRELAR
19FEREEE
(&%) ERAT]
159 Autologous Stem  Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 = 51%  Storage and
Cell LifeBank (HK) &% company LERIET processing of
Limited BREEAA stem cells
BRI BRENR BT RN

ARERRAF

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
F {2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name of
Company

AL

Place of
incorporation/
operation
EESE

Form of
legal entity

EERRKA

Issue and paid up
capital/registered
capital
BRARMERET/
B} e

2. FEREBLTHFE @)

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital
registered capital held
by the Company
AARFBERITRE/
aMRAEERD
Directly Indirectly
Ef R

Principal
activities

159 Anti-Aging Center  Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51%  Stem cell anti-aging
(HK.) Limited i company LRR1AT application related
BE19OMTERL BREEAH services
BRAT] HAPNRERER
RIAERE
Asia Honest Finance  Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Money lending
Limited i company LRR1AT business
AFHBERAT AREEAT HEXH
Life Length International Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Health Club Limited &7 company EER1VETL REER
EnREERER BRELAR
[BETERAA
EGRERTCEY)  The People's Limited liability RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
BRAT Republicof China  company. AR 50,000,000 and trading
EAREHE BRELAR business
REZRRE H5H
RN EMRE  The People's Limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Ant-aging and
BRAR Republic of China ~ company. AR 3,000,000 beauty service
EAREHE BREEARA hEEREDRH
MImEnRERE  The People’s Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and
ERBRAT Republic of China ~ company AR 500,000 heauty service
mEAREHE BREEAR hEERERRH
ZREZEREEE  The People's Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Hotel investment
BRAT Republicof China  company AR10,000,000 and management
hEAREHE AREEAH BEERERER

EMBRARBMETANAFE BRI AFE
AEAE EFEZ EBES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. XEMEAFFE @)

(continued)
(b)  The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned b)) TRHEINEBEREERERZAEER
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- EREMB AR ZFE -

controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
Interest held by non- Loss allocated to Accumulated non-
controlling interest  non-controlling interest  controlling interests
FERRER AREFERER
Fris R Rs L fl ) RitEERER
Place of
Name of incorporation/  Principal place
Company operation of business 2015 2015 2014
EEY,/
ARER EEE TEXBBE —2-1F
159 Regenerative British Virgin Hong Kong
Medicine Group (H.K.) Islands
Limited 49% 49% (2,953) (2838)  (12,682) (9,729)
INBERESE(RE) ERENHES N
BRAT
159 Anti-Aging Center (H.K) Hong Kong Hong Kong
Limited 49% 49% (447) (2,346) (14,210) (13,762)
BB 19MFER L B Bl
BRAT
159 Autologous Stem Hong Kong Hong Kong
Cell LifeBank (H.K) Limited 49% 49% (2,169) (2,139) (5,963) (3,794)
BB 159 BN B Bl
#AREERAR
Indlividually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (4,121) (2,264)

AR RS R EHB AR

(36,976)  (29,549)

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42.
(continued)
Summarized financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interest is set out below. The summarized financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group

FEMBLTIHEN®)

BAEAFFER RS c ARBEEHE AR 2
BERBIIMT - U THBERRZ REENR
KA 2 SR

156

eliminations.
2015 —2-1F
159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine 159 Anti-Aging  Stem Cell Life
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) Bank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
548159 EB15988E
159BEBE2EE RRERO M AR
(BB)BRAT BRAR BRA T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET

current assets BB E 99 52,581 590
Non-current assets ERBEE - 3,887 4,119
Current liabilities mEaE (25,981) (85,468) (16,878)
Non-current liabilities NN - - -
Equity attributable to owners ARRHEAR AEGRER

of the Company (13,199) (14,790) (6,207)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (12,682) (14,210) (5,963)
Revenue e 590 13,740 -
Expenses FX (6,617) (14,654) (4,427)
Loss for the year REEEE (6,027) (914) (4,427)
Loss attributable to owners of AARHEE NEHER

the Company (3,074) (466) (2,258)
Loss attributable to IR R FE G B 1R

the non-controlling interests (2,953) (448) (2,169)
Loss for the year REEEE (6,027) (914) (4,427)
Other comprehensive income VN/NGIEZ 2SN )

attributable to owners Hi 2wk

of the Company - - -
Other comprehensive income SEPERG RS FE M

attributable to the H 2 E e

non-controlling interests - - -
Other comprehensive income AEFHM AT

for the year

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. EEMEBATFIFIE (W)
(continued)
2015 (continued) “E-RF(H)

159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine 159 Anti-Aging  Stem Cell Life
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) Bank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited

£HE159 FBE19EBE

159BLEBEEH RREHRD M 4R K &
(BR)ARAF ARAH BRAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TET THET

Total comprehensive expense RNRRHEE AEML

attributable to owners of the ZHEMZ B

Company (3,074) (466) (2,258)
Total comprehensive expense FEIE R e (G

attributable to ZHEMZ B

the non-controlling interests (2,953) (448) (2,169)

Total comprehensive expense AEEZERAT B
for the year (6,027) (914) (4,427)

Dividends paid to non-controlling £ 5 3EHAR RS 2 I 2

interests - - -
Net cash outflow from RELLEEBZRSRE

operating activities F5 (5,267) (6,753) (2,703)
Net cash outflow from RERBEBZRESRE

investing activities B4 - @) @)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REMEITEZEESTA

financing activities (Fi) FsE (5,267) (5,480) 2,707
Net cash outflow BeRLSE - (1,280) -

BEREDNEEMEBEERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42, =EMELFFE#)

(continued)

2014

—E2-mF

159
Regenerative
Medicine
Group (H.K)
Limited

159 BERELH
(BB)BRAR
HK$'000

FTAT

159 Anti-Aging
Center (HK.)
Limited
75159
MEEFRL
BERAT]
HK$'000
THIT

159 Autologous
Stem Cell Life
Bank (H.K.)
Limited

BB 159 58EE
M4 &
BERAT
HK$'000

THIT

Current assets REEE 102 44,440 556
Non-current assets FERBEE - 5,637 5,863
Current liabilities MEAE (19,957) (78,163) (14,163)
Non-current liabilities EEDN=VET - - -
Equity attributable to owners AABHEAR NEGER

of the Company (10,126) (14,324) (3,949
Non-controlling interests IR R (9.729) (13,762) (3,794)
Revenue g - 10,056 -
Expenses X 5,792 14,843 4,366
Loss for the year AEEZEE (5,792) (4,787) (4,366)
Loss attributable to owners ARAIER AEGER

of the Company (2,954) (2,447) (2,227)
Loss attributable to ES2ie Fay oy ]

the non-controlling interests (2,838) (2,346) (2,139)
Loss for the year AEEEE (5,792) 4,787) (4,366)
Other comprehensive income VNGIE =N

attributable to owners of Hih 2Kz

the Company - - -
Other comprehensive income IR RS

attributable to the H 2 E e

non-controlling interests - - -
Other comprehensive income REFHMEERE

for the year
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. XEMEAFFE @)

(continued)

2014 (continued)

Regenerative

Group (H.K.)

159 BEEELE
(BAB)BRAR
HK$'000
FHETT

—T—mE ()

159
159 Autologous
Stem Cell Life
Bank (H.K.)
Limited
BB159 BEE
M4 E
BRAT
HK$'000
FHET

Medicine 159 Anti-Aging
Center (H.K.)
Limited
E5159
mEERL
BRAR
HK$'000
FAET

Limited

Total comprehensive expense RARIHEE AESR

attributable to owners of the SEASEHE

Company (2,954) (2,441) (2,227)
Total comprehensive expense FEEIRIE R RS

attributable to the SEAXEHE

non-controlling interests (2,838) (2,346) (2,139)
Total comprehensive expense  AFEREFHSEE

for the year (5,792) (4,787) (4,366)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 5 3F# A 2S 2 IR B

interests - - -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REREEIE 7SR A

operating activities () 58 (5,542) 3,764 (2,506)
Net cash outflow from RERBEE 2 HE

investing activities PiplanbeeE:] = (73) (65)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REME RS ZRERA

financing activities (R 8 5,542 (1,501) 2,571
Net cash inflow BeERNFHE - 2,190 -

43. LITIGATION 43. &b

On 14 March 2014, LST Operating Limited as the defendant
and as the tenant, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, received an amended writ of summons in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Based on the statement of claims, the plaintiff as the
landlord claimed against the defendant for the outstanding
rent, service charges, rates, interest, costs and damages to
be assessed. The defendant has filed a defence on 23 May
2014 which denied certain claims made by the plaintiff.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the vacant
possession of the suit premises was delivered to the
landlord and the Group has paid compensation of
approximately HK$600,000 to the plaintiff to settle the claim.

R-ZE—WF=ZA+HA  ARaME2EH
J& A B1LST Operating Limited ({E B & R 15 A
R BEESBENTRERS AR 2 &85
BESH  IRIFRRRE - RE(EAEE)
MWERENREEZHE  REE - 260
ME BARBHTEZEBR WHEERZT
—NFRAZ+=HEX—HhEE  EeE
RREREZETRRE -BHE_T—AF=H
=t+—HILFE SPRFBZDEEREER
& MAEEE AR E A BB 4 600,000 74
TCLAERERR -
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b 5 M B ER R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

44. MATERIAL EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 44. #HEMEZEXER

For the year ended 31 March 2015

On 15 June 2015, Life Length Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Vendor”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party (“Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Vendor has agreed to disposed of (i)
its entire equity interest in the Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi
Hotel Company Limited (“Target Company”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and (ii) its loan
due from the Target Company to the Purchaser at a
consideration of RMB5,000,000 to be satisfied in cash
(“Disposal”). The Vendor has completed the Disposal to
Purchaser on 19 June 2015. Details of the Disposal are set
out in the Company’s voluntary announcement dated 15
June 2015. As the Group has not been committed to a sale
plan regarding the disposal of Target Company at the end of
the reporting period, neither the assets and liabilities nor
the operations of the Target Company are classified as held
for sale and as discontinued operations respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2014

On 4 April 2014, Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited ("Wuli Tianxi”) entered into (i) the lease agreement
with Wuyuan County Yuhe Property Development Company
Limited (“Yuhe") pursuant to which Wuli Tianxi agreed to
lease the property from Yuhe upon the terms and conditions
set out in the lease agreement. The property is located in
Jiangxi Province, PRC consisting of a hotel building and 10
blocks of terrace villas; and (i) the management agreement
with Shenzhen Ruiyue Hotel Management Company Limited
("Ruiyue”), pursuant to which Ruiyue agreed to provide hotel
management service to Wuli Tianxi upon the terms and
conditions set out in the management agreement. Wuli
Tianxi employed Ruiyue as the sole manager in charge of
managing the hotel during the effective period of the
management agreement. Up to the date of this report, Wuli
Tianxi has not commenced business operation. Details of
the lease agreement and management agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4 April
2014,

BE-_Z-HF=A=+—HLEE
RZZE—hEATHRA ARAZEEELE
MEBARERREMRCRINDARAR(TE
HDEBIE=(ER DRI REEED
& BUESREMETHE)AREZEE
2ENBRARBREEEREEHERRAA
(TBRAR]) Z 28R () BKBIRARE
2 1B AR 5,000,000 T AR S ER ([
EFH) -RZE-AF<A+IE BEAF®
KRBT ZHESRR - WEFBEZFBHIA
REABHMA-ZT-HAFEATHERZEBRER
o - MBEHR - ANAEBE AL BETHIRE
BMHEBRARCHERE BREARZE
E REREEYESRABEHERDKL
EL

BE-E-—NE=A=+—HLEE
R-ZZE—NFMANA  BREEERERBE
BRARI(ZEXRE])()RERGHMEXS
Al ([T ZHEAR - Bt - ZEX
BERERAWMHAEZEE  BEGRRGEHS
REEER - ZEEMRTBIIEE © B —1iE
B JE R RE I 1008 s BE B B AR AR ¢ R (i) BRI
M EEEEARAE (R EILEEA
BBl WA ERZEEREREBESE
R - HEBBERREHERERER - ZEX
EERRUAE—BEER  REREREB R
RABEZAE - HEAREHH ZEXE
MARAEGKE - HEGRKEEREGRZF
BRAANFBHA-ZT—MENANEZ A M
A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

45. RESERVES 45. f#im
The Group RE
Share
Share Special options Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RAEE BRI BRERE BEGRE ZithiE aE
HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000
AL THL THL TR Tbr THL
At1 April 2013 W-E-=#RmA-A 448,577 (39,998) 15,445 4473 (131,456) 297,041
Loss for the year KEEBE - - - - (152,201) (152,201)
Release of translation reserve upon HERBARRERELHE
disposal of subsidiaries - - - (6,852) - (6,852)
Exchange differences arising on BERNFBEL ERES
translation of foreign operations - - - 1,643 - 1,643
Total comprehensive expense TEERERTLE
for the year - - - (5.209) (152,201) (157 410)
Isste of ordinary shares Under BERAEERTERR
share placing 76222 - - - - 76222
Recognition of equity-settled ERNER AR EE RIARN
share-base payments BERZAT - - 2539 - - 2539
Share option lapsed BIREXT - - (17,013) - 17013 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAA - - - - - -
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-E-ME=RA=1-BER
“E-MEMA-A 524,799 (39,998) 971 (736) (266,644) 218,392
Loss for the year KEEBE - - - - (81,134) (81,134)
Release of translation reserve upon ]Gl
deregistration of subsidiaries EXfFE - - - 1,579 - 1,579
Exchange differences arising on BN FBELZERES
translation of foreign operations - - - (44) - (44)
Total comprenensive expense TEERERSLE
for the year - - - 1,535 (81,134) (79.599)
Share option lapsed BRELH - - (3,883) - 3,883 -
Recognition of equity-settled EANERAREER
share-base payments DARRMR AR 2 50 - - 4,487 - - 4,487
At 31 March 2015 R=Z-1F=f=1-H 524,799 (39,998) 1,578 799 (343,895) 143,280
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

45. RESERVES (continued) 45. fEE (&)
The Company AN

Share
Share Options Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total

ROWE BRESE  RiEA a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TET TR

At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWA—H 448,577 15,445 (160,489) 303,533
Loss for the year AEEZEE = = (187,652) (187,652)
Total comprehensive expense  RNEE2EF X AE

for the year - - (187,652) (187,652)
Issue of ordinary shares under — RIERMDEEEZITERK

share placing 76,222 - - 76,222
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR

share-based payment VARG AR B 2 3R = 2,539 - 2,539
Share options lapsed BRI = (17,013) 17,013 -
At 31 March 2014 and R-Z-—ME=A=+—HBK

at 1 April 2014 RZZ—NFEmHA—H 524,799 971 (331,128) 194,642
Loss for the year KEEEE | - - (65,012) (65,012)
Total comprehensive expense  ANEE R E R B

for the year - - (65,012) (65,012)
Recognition of equity-settled R EH

share-based payment PARR 12 A ELHE 2 5K - 4,487 - 4,487
Share options lapsed BE AR RE 3 - (3,883) 3,883 -
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=1+—H 524,799 1,575 (392,257) 134,117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 MBS R R Mk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z=—ZF—AF=H=1+—HILFE

45. RESERVES (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

46.

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 2002.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 5(g).

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the fair value of
the number of unexercised share options granted by
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 5(t)()).

Distributability of reserves

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2015 amount to approximately
HK$132,542,000 (2014: HK$193,671,000).

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of directors on
24 June 2015.

45. & W (#)
HETEERBARE

46.

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R4 E

RIBAEFERRDE(RER])  ARF]
AT DARS A7 i B R AR R 3 IR 3 S A5 B,
HAETARREBEE MM Z
& - BERATEAR R BN ERED IR X
MHlEE% DBEENEENATERB
RO ER - 7 ERE DRI A

B -

BRI

AEE 2 FhFEBEARRRMNN _-F
ToF WA REEEAEMKBENE
DA BR A BN B B U RE P 3 AT
RO BREEMERZ Z5 o

BREGHE
BREREREREBINERTBRRE
ECBERZEE  ZHEEIREWE
5@ FTEl et BOREIE ©

AR A
R B G 5 2 2 PR 38 4 4 R AT 0
R E 2 AFE - A EE 500 51X
350 2 RO A 0 2 3T
i BT BRHER -

AR D IR E

RAAREBEERE W-_ZE—HFE=ZA=+—
H AARAERIRETFTREZHEBED A
132,542,000 70 (== — I 4 : 193,671,000

JT) e

# AR B
AARNEFEN -T-AFNA-THA#E
RERTIBG G BBRE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBIRNE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #Z—=—ZF—AF=H=+—HIFE

The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the AEBEEEREMBFEE 2 GAESE  BELAE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the (F$AAREEKLEZMBHRE)MHNWT
audited financial statements of the Group, were set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HILEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

—T——f —T-——F —FT-—=F —T-NFE —ZE-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET TET FHT FTET

Turnover e 79,733 71,727 86,113 706,787 324,155
Loss before tax KA A& 1B 9,879) (31,267) (41,949) (184,375) (86,852)
Income tax st (81) (758) (1,177) (583) (1,709)
Loss for the year NEEEIE (9,960) (32,025) (43,126) (184,958) (88,561)

Attributable to: 1

Owners of the Company VAN ZE N (8,930) (28,448) (35,614) (152,201) (81,134)
Non-controlling interest Flsuliliys T (1,030) (3,577) (7,512) (32,757) (7,427)

As at 31 March
MR=B=+—H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

—T——F —FT——F T —“FTOF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREAE

Total assets EEEBEE 419,983 433,215 691,219 441,760 316,665
Total liabilities BEERE (112,653) (106,317) (227,221) (94,904) (52,348)
Net assets BEFHE 307,330 326,898 463,998 346,856 264,317
Non-controlling interests  FE#ZEfRfEzs 77,607 57,434 35,279 (29,549) (36,976)
1 64 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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